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Dear Shareholders,

| hereby present the annual report of HyComm Wireless Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010 and summarise
below the recent development of the Group.

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group recorded
turnover in continuing operations for the year of approximately
HK$9.5 million (2009: HK$12.6 million) and a profit for the year
in continuing operations of approximately HK$43.5 million (2009:
loss of HK$76.5 million). For the discontinued operations, they
recorded turnover of approximately HK$6.4 million and a profit
of approximately HK$1.4 million during the year ended 31 March
2009 and did not contribute any turnover or profit for the year
ended 31 March 2010. In aggregate, the Group recorded a profit
of approximately HK$43.5 million for year ended 31 March 2010
(2009: loss of HK$75.1 million). Profit for the year was mainly
attributable to revaluation gain on investment properties and gain
on disposal of subsidiaries.

DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group was mainly engaged in
businesses of leasing of investment properties and car parking
spaces and provision of loan financing. The rental of car parking
spaces and investment properties and interest income from loan
financing continued to contribute to the Group. Each segment
provided a stable income stream to the Group. The Group
recorded turnover of HK$9.5 million, which was represented by
the businesses in leasing of properties, carpark management and
loan financing for the amounts of HK$1.8 million, HK$6.0 million
and HK$1.7 million respectively. The Group recorded a profit
in the segment of loan financing of approximately HK$1 million
and a loss in the segments of leasing of investment properties
and carpark management of approximately HK$0.5 million and
HK$0.06 million respectively.
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PROSPECTS

The global economic conditions have been in recovery, but
various countries are still under the shadow of the financial
turmoil. Despite the favourable environment exists, the Board
shall continuously take prudent approach to manage its
businesses and will review its investment portfolio from time to
time so as to strengthen and enhance the value of the Group. The
existing operations in businesses of property investment, leasing
of carparking spaces and loan financing maintain to provide a
stable income for the Group. Moreover, it is also likely that the
new opportunities may emerge and the management remains
cautiously optimistic about the Group’s prospects. The Group
will from time to time explore investment opportunity that could
provide investment potential and broaden the income stream
of the Group. With the new management team of the Group, it
is expected that it can bring a prosperous development for the
Group.

SHI Jian Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 July 2010
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Currently, the principal activity the Company is investment holding
and its subsidiaries which mainly engage in the businesses of
property investment, provision of loan financing and operating the
leasing of car parking spaces.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, PLEDGE OF
ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2010, bank and cash balances (including time
deposits) maintained by the Group were HK$243.1 million (2009:
HK$179.3 million), representing an increase of HK$63.8 million
compared with the position as at 31 March 2009. It is believed
that the Group has adequate cash resources to meet the normal
working capital requirements and all commitments of future
development. The gearing of the Group, measured as total debts
to total assets, was 19.5% as at 31 March 2010, comparing with
36.4% as at 31 March 2009.

Most of the business transactions conducted by the Group
were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. As at 31 March 2010,
there were no outstanding forward contracts in foreign currency
committed by the Group that might involve it in significant foreign
exchange risks and exposures.

As at 31 March 2010, investment properties of approximately
HK$70.0 million (2009: HK$129.7 million) were pledged to secure
the Group’s bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2010, the Group did not have any material
contingent liability and capital commitment.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had 10 staff. Employees and
directors are remunerated based on individual contribution,
industry practice and prevail market situation and in accordance
with prevailing labour laws. In addition to the basic salary,
employees and directors are rewarded with performance-related
bonuses, other staff welfare and also a share options scheme will
be made available to certain staff of the Group at the discretion of
the Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company comprises of three
independent non-executive directors. The primary duties of the
audit committee are to review and advise on the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, auditing, financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group,
including review of the results for the year ended 31 March 2010.

The audit committee meets the Group’s senior management

regularly to review the effectiveness of the internal control
systems and the interim and annual reports of the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shi Jian Ping, aged 40, is the Chairman of the Group. He
joined the Group on 8 July 2010. He possesses extensive
experience in coal mining business. From 2002 to early 2010,
Mr. Shi was the vice president of Shanxi Liansheng Energy Co.,
Ltd (“LLi PaEs a5 BEJR B BR 2 B17), which is one of the largest private
coking coal production companies in China. Prior to that, Mr. Shi
was the chief executive officer of Shanxi Liulin City Jinjiazhuang
Coal Mine Company (‘LTI & REKFEBR A F]") and chief
executive officer of Shanxi Derui Coal Mine and Coking Company
(‘LS IR L BBR 2 R)”). Mr. Shi was a non-executive director
of Fushan International Energy Group Limited (Stock code:
00639) from November 2008 to January 2010. Currently, Mr. Shi is
the chairman and founder of Tongjiang International Energy Co.,
Ltd (‘BT R Ee)R AR A R]"), which is the largest shareholder
of Altona Resources Plc, a clean energy and coal mine resources
company listed in UK.

Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley, aged 41, is the Deputy Chairman of
the Group. He joined the Group on 23 April 2010. He possesses
extensive experience in financial services and investment projects.
Over the last few years, he has served as top management
in two companies which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Choi was an executive director of
Simsen International Corporation Limited (stock code: 00993)
with core businesses in financial services, including investment
banking, securities brokerage, bullion and forex dealing for the
period from May 2008 to April 2010. Prior to that, Mr. Choi was
the chief executive officer and an executive director of Oriental
Ginza Holdings Limited (stock code: 00996) which engages in
investment in rental properties and retail-related consultancy and
management services in the People’s Republic of China for the
period from October 2006 to October 2007. In addition, he has
also worked for different sizable financial groups and corporations
in Hong Kong with senior positions. Mr. Choi graduated with
Magna Cum Laude in Business Administration of the Wichita
State University and later received a Master of Science degree
in International Finance from the University of lllinois, both in
the United States of America. In June 2006, he was awarded a
graduation certificate for successfully completed a Master degree
course in law from the Law School of the Chinese People’s
University. He is a founding partner of Yunfeng Fund L.P., a well-
capitalized private equity fund focused on telecoms, media &
technology and new energy investment projects.
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Mr. Liu Shun Chuen, aged 47, was the Chairman of the Group
up to 8 July 2010. He joined the Group on 12 October 2007. He
is responsible for the overall corporate strategy of the Group. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration
from San Francisco State University, the United States of
America, and a Bachelor degree in Estate Management from
University of Reading, United Kingdom. He has more than 11
years experience in property development and investment in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Yeung Sau Chung, aged 44, is the managing director of the
Group. He joined the Group on 6 November 2007. He is currently
responsible for the overall management of the Group. He has
more than 16 years experience in research and analysis of
investment portfolio and risk management. He holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Accountancy from City University of Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Wang Li, aged 35, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 31 December 2007.
He obtained his bachelor of commerce degree from Deakin
University and has over 10 years of experience in auditing and
accounting profession and consulting services. He is a director
of Skywise Consultants Limited, which is principally engaged in
provision of business consulting services such as financial and
accounting services and is admitted to the status of Certified
Practicing Accountant of CPA Australia. Currently, he is an
independent non-executive director of Tomorrow International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 760).

Mr. Ng Wai Hung, aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 10 January 2008. He is
a practicing solicitor and a partner in lu, Lai Li, a Hong Kong firm
of solicitors and notaries. He has extensive experience in the area
of securities laws, corporate law and commercial law in Hong
Kong and has been involved in initial public offerings of securities
in Hong Kong as well as corporate restructuring and merger and
acquisitions and takeovers of listed companies. He frequently
advises multinational and Hong Kong corporations on private
equity investments, joint venture as well as regulatory compliance.
Currently, he is an independent non-executive director of KPT
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 645), Fortune Sun (China)
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 352) and Tomorrow International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 760).
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Mr. Jacobsen William Keith, aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 20 June
2008. He has more than 16 years experience in corporate finance
and business development. He holds a Bachelor of Laws from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration
from the University of British Columbia.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan King Chung, aged 47, is the qualified accountant and
company secretary of the Company. He joined the Group on
1 November 2008. He worked as the company secretary and
qualified accountant of listed companies in Hong Kong for more
than 11 years. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Wireless Technologies Limited (Stock Code:
2369), a company listed in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries. Mr. Chan holds Bachelor of Business
Administration and Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and City University of Hong
Kong respectively. He also holds master degrees in Accountancy
and Business Administration.
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The directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 and
the state of the Company’s and Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 28 to 99.

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2010 are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 26 to the
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 31
March 2010 and the resulting revaluation gains amounted to
approximately HK$21,140,000 (2009: loss of HK$25,721,000).

Details of these and other movements in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
March 2010 are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of the convertible notes are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
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MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are set out on
page 102.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr Shi Jian Ping (Chairman) (Appointed on 8 July 2010)

Mr Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley
(Deputy Chairman)

Mr Liu Shun Chuen

(Appointed on 23 April 2010)

(Resigned as Chairman on
8 July 2010)
Mr Yeung Sau Chung (Managing Director)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr Wu Wang Li

Mr Ng Wai Hung

Mr Jacobsen William Keith

In accordance with bye-law of the Company, and to comply with
the Listing Rules, Mr Shi Jian Ping, Mr Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley,
Mr Liu Shun Chuen and Mr Wu Wang Li will retire from office at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements:

(i)  there were no other transactions which are required to be
disclosed as related party transactions pursuant to the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”); and

(i) there were no other contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 March 2010 and as at the
date of this report, none of the directors, the chief executive
and their associates of the Company had any interests and
short positions in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which have been notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code”) of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.
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Percentage of
the Company’s

Long position/ Number of issued
Name of director Short position Ordinary Shares held share capital
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As at 31 March 2010
WZZE-—ZTF=A=+—H
As at the date of this report
AR S B
Mr. Shi Jian Ping Long Position 97,000,000 19.43%
Al A sy}
Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley Long Position 28,300,000 5.67%

LS e
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SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting of
the shareholders held on 15 July 2002, the Company terminated
the old share option scheme and adopted the new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 9 September 2002.

The primary purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives
to directors and eligible employees and it remains in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 9 September 2002. Under
the New Scheme, the directors may, at their absolute discretion,
invite any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company:

(i)  any employees, executives (including any executive directors
but excluding any independent non-executive directors and
non-executive directors), managers and consultants of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested
Entity”) in which any members of the Group holds an equity
interest;

(i) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(i) any suppliers of goods or services to any members of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(iv) any customers of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(v) any persons or entities that provide research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(vi) any shareholders or any members of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holders of any securities issued by any
members of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(viil) any advisors (professional) or consultants to any area of

business or business development of any members of the

Group or any Invested Entity; and

(vii) any joint venture partners or business alliances that co-

operate with any members of the Group or any Invested

Entity in any area of business operations or development.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options may be
exercised at any time from the date of offer of the share option
1o a date to be determined and notified by the directors or, in the
absence of such determination, the earlier of the date on which
the options lapse or the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, the average closing price
of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, and the nominal value of the Company shares.

There have been no outstanding options granted under the New
Scheme since its adoption and, therefore, no options outstanding
at the end of the year. In addition, there were no options granted
to, or outstanding in respect of the old share option scheme at
the end of reporting period.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2010, none of the directors of the Company had
any personal interests in share options to subscribe for shares
in the Company granted under the share option schemes of the
Company.

No share options were granted to, or exercised by, any directors
during the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate. In addition, none of the
directors, or their spouses or children under the age of 18 had
any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company or had
exercised any such rights during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS

So far as is known to the directors or chief executive of the
Company, the following persons (other than a director or chief
executive of the Company or their associates) who had an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would fall to be
disclosed under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or who was directly and indirectly interested in ten per cent.
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other member the Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS IXEREM#EX @)
(Continued)
Interest in Underlying Shares AIERERR Dz S
Number of  Approximate %
underlying  of shareholding
Name Capacity shares held interest
g %) g2 IRAEREA
EERME R Baotk
Regal Power Investments Beneficial Owner 51,500,000 10.31
Limited (Note 182) (Ktit1%2) BESEAA
Mr. Chan Yuen Ming (Note 1&2) Interest of controlled 51,500,000 10.31
FRIRBR A (et 1 22) corporation
SAEHIA AR
Mr. Shi Jian Ping (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 97,000,000 19.43
BEFREHE2) BEmlEAA
Joy Glory Limited (Note 3) (#15£3) Beneficial Owner 72,000,000 14.42
BE=mEAA
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph (Note 3) Beneficial Owner/ 96,400,000 19.31
BB RIE(M23) Interest of controlled
corporation
EnlAAN/ ZEGATER
Billion Gain Development Beneficial Owner 94,000,000 18.83
Limited (Note 4)(KfiF4) BE=BA
Miss Beh Yong Shin (Note 4) Interest of controlled 94,000,000 18.83
SR/ ME(H7E4) corporation
SAEHIA AR
Notes: Hiat -

1. Regal Power Investments Limited (“Regal Power”) is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yuen Ming, who is also a director of

Regal Power.

2. On 29 June 2010, Mr. Shi Jian Ping entered into an agreement with
Regal Power investments Limited to acquire 97,000,000 shares of

the Company.

3. Joy Glory Limited (“Joy Glory”) is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, who is also a director of Joy Glory.

4.  Billion Gain Development Limited (“Billion Gain”) is wholly and
beneficially owned by Miss Beh Yong Shin, who is also a director of

Billion Gain.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS
(Continued)

Interest in Underlying Shares (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the directors or
chief executive of the Company, the Company had not been
notified of any other interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would fall to be disclosed under provisions of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or any persons (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who was directly
and indirectly interested in ten per cent. or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount
of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 37% of the Group’s total turnover
from continuing operations and the amount of turnover
attributable to the largest customer was approximately 16% of
total turnover from continuing operations.

The Group has no purchases of trading goods during the year
ended 31 March 2010 and thus there were no major suppliers for
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any equity interests in any of
the Group’s five largest customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the
Company has maintained a public float of its shares throughout
the year ended 31 March 2010 which exceeded the minimum
requirements of the Stock Exchange.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme for its
employees. Particulars of the provident fund scheme are set out
in note 29 to the financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd., Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) were first appointed as auditors of the Company in
2008.

KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd. retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd. as auditors of the

Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Shi Jian Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 July 2010
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The board of directors (the “Board”) recognises their mission to
create value and maximise returns on behalf of the shareholders
of the Company while at the same time fulfilling their corporate
responsibilities. Accordingly, the Company strives to promote and
uphold a balanced and high standard of corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited came into effect on 1 January 2005. The Company
has put in place corporate governance practices to comply with
all the provisions of the CG Code, except for certain areas of non-
compliance discussed later in this report, during the year ended
31 March 2010.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by
the directors. The Company has made specific and reasonable
enquiries of all directors and is satisfied that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to the shareholders and all directors
are collectively responsible for formulating the strategic business
direction of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and
setting objectives for management, overseeing performance and
assessing the effectiveness of management strategies.

The Directors

Currently, the Board comprises seven directors, including
four executive directors and three independent non-executive
directors. The biographical details of the directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 7 to 9 of this
annual report. The composition of the Board is well balanced
with each director having sound knowledge, experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business operations and development of
the Group. All directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to shareholders and have exercised their duties
with care, skill and diligence and, thereby, have contributed to the
performance of the Group.
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Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley was appointed as an executive
director and the deputy chairman of the Company on 23 April
2010. Mr. Shi Jian Ping was appointed as an executive director
and chairman of the Company on 8 July 2010, and Mr. Liu
Shun Chuen was resigned as the chairman of the Company and
remains as an executive director of the Company on 8 July 2010.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board reviews the performance of the operating divisions
against their agreed targets and budgets on a regular basis and
also exercises a number of reserved powers, including but not
limited to:

formulating long-term strategies;

e  setting objectives for management;

° approving public announcements including the interim and
annual financial statements;

e setting dividend and other important policies;

e approving material borrowings and treasury policies; and

e assessing and committing to major acquisitions, disposals,
formation of joint ventures and capital transactions.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company for each financial year and ensuring
that these give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, its results and cash flows for that period. The directors
are also responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records
which will accurately reflect the financial position of the Group are
maintained at all times.

All directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely

information of the Group and are able to obtain independent
professional advices on issues whenever deemed necessary.
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Board Meetings

Directors are consulted on matters to be included in the agenda
for Board meetings and have access to the advice and services
to ensure that board meeting procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed. At least 14 days formal notice
would be given before each regular meeting is held. For special
meetings, reasonable notice is given. The Company held five
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2010 and the individual
attendance of each director is set out below.

Members of the Board

EE0eRRR T RKHAESRET  TE
EPTMEBRERE  BREFEREFMFAE
ERBRARROIHEREST -  BEHRSAEFA
AEHRPVABIENRBA - sti5RIgHSE - R
BHAEEM - HE—_T-TF=A=T—HI
FE  ARBEETHAREE  SEFERLE
SRNERHIMT o

Number of Board
meetings attended

EEgHE HEEEEERAH
Executive directors:

HITESE -

Liu Shun Chuen 5/5
BiE%®

Yeung Sau Chung 5/5
BHAH

Lai Yiu Keung (resigned on 4 June 2009) 1/5
RiEw (RZZETNFNAMNBEHE)

Independent non-executive directors:

BUIFHTEE -

Wu Wang Li 3/5
RohIg

Ng Wai Hung 3/5
R

Jacobsen William Keith 3/5

There is no service contract with each of the executive and
independent non-executive directors. However, they are also
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election according to the
bye-laws of the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr Wu Wang Li (Chairman), Mr
Jacobsen Wiliam Keith and Mr Ng Wai Hung. The written terms
of reference for the Audit Committee, which are available on
the Company’s website www.hycomm-wireless.com, were first
adopted in 1999 and subsequently revised in 2005 to comply
with the provisions of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group’s
financial information, overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting systems and internal control procedures and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and/or removal of the external auditors, including
approving their remuneration and terms of engagement.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
advising on the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group together with overseeing the auditing, financial
reporting processes and internal control systems of the Group,
including reviews of the Group’s interim and annual reports.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2010 to review the final results for the year ended 31
March 2009 with the external auditors and the interim results for
the six months ended 30 September 2009 before recommending
them to the Board for approval. Individual meeting attendance
records of each member of the Audit Committee are set out
below.

Members of the Audit Committee

EREES]

BAl - B%EZEGH=-BEIIERNITESHERK -
BNRELIRAAE(ERE) » Jacobsen William Keith5t
ERREHREE  BEREZEGCERMESER
—NANFEEERRN  HER_ZTRFE
] AHARESTRINAE BRSBTS
A A IEwww.hycomm-wireless.com e

ERZESARFEHARENYBEN  BEEA
SENMEREHERABEEREF  ERE
BEZER /SRS EMMEETSRHERE
o Hoh iR ESNE R BN A BN & N I R G o
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ARAREMERILREER  AREEAREE
EZ - BTSRRI RAREEGE - BER
BAEENT R FERS -
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F“E‘f'%‘éﬁﬁﬁmé‘m : Lxéﬁiﬁl\ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂigﬁﬁﬁi
ZTNF=-A=+-RALFEZ2FEE &Eki
TERAFNAZFTRERNEAZTHEE K
BATBEFSHEZRTRE - BERREEEN
BERHFEERNBRFRNT

Number of Committee
meetings attended

EREEERE HEZEEERAY
Wu Wang Li 2/2
ReLiE
Ng Wai Hung 2/2
RIFMH
Jacobsen William Keith 2/2

22

HyComm Wireless Limited K E B EHRA R



DEVIATIONS FROM THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the CG Code except for the
deviations as set out below.

CG Code provision A.4 states that non-executive director should
be appointed for a specific term. All independent non-executive
directors of the Company are appointed without any specific
term. According to the Company’s bye-laws, at every annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. The
Board considers that sufficient measures will be taken to ensure
the corporate governance practice of the Company are not less
than those in the CG Code.

CG Code provision B.1.1 states that companies should establish
a remuneration committee with specific terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authority and duties and a majority of the
members of the remuneration committee should be independent
non-executive directors. The Board is in the opinion that
establishment of a remuneration committee as required by this
provision does not really provide benefit after due consideration
of the size of the Group and the associated costs involved.
Moreover, the Board conducts an informal assessment of the
individual director’s contribution so that no director decide their
own remuneration. Apart from basic salary, staff benefits include
performance related bonuses and mandatory provident fund
would be provided by the Group.

The Board will continue to review the corporate governance
status of the Company from time to time and make any necessary
changes to comply with the CG Code as and when considered
appropriate.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the total remuneration
for audit and other services provided by the external auditor,
namely KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd., amounted to approximately
HK$420,000 and HK$7,000. The audit fee was approved by the
Board and the Audit Committee.

The re-appointment of KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd. as auditor of
the Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee
and endorsed by the Board and is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
responsibilities of the directors are to oversee the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of its results and cash flows for that period. The directors
have to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards, adjustments and estimates
made are prudent, fair and reasonable and the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The
directors also acknowledge that the publication of the financial
statements of the Group should be made in a timely manner.

The statement of the Auditors regarding their reporting

responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 26 and 27.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring sound
and effective internal control systems for the Group are in place
to safeguard the assets of the Company at all times. The systems
of internal control also aim to help achieve the Group’s business
objectives by maintaining proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information. It is recognised that the
systems provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets
and help to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure when
business objectives are being pursued.

Review on the effectiveness of the internal control systems
covering all material controls in the financial, operational and
compliance areas including coverage of the risk management
functions as well as physical assets and information systems
security was conducted during the year. The Audit Committee
was reported twice a year in respect of key findings identified
and the Audit Committee, in turn, reported all material issues
and recommendations, if any and as appropriate, to the Board.
It also considered that adequacy of resources, qualification and
experience of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programme and budget.

The external auditors, in 2004, reviewed and documented
the internal control systems of the Group. Certain relevant
recommendations made by the external auditors have been
implemented by the Group in stages together with subsequent
improvements, if any, made by the Board to further enhance
internal control policies, procedures and practices.

The Board has concluded that the Group’s overall system of

internal controls has effectively exercised its functions during the
year, and will continue to improve the operation of the system.
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Indépendent Auditor’s Report™ —
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KIC

BEREEHMEHFEMERLA
KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

To the shareholders of
HyComm Wireless Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
HyComm Wireless Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 28
to 99, which comprise the consolidated and company statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Choy Po Fong

Practising Certificate No.: P0O4688

Hong Kong, 26 July 2010
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- Consolldated Statemento Comg

Notes
Hat
Continuing operations BREET
Turnover %%%ﬁi 5
Revaluation gains/(losses) on investment wEMEBEGE R
properties (&18) 13
Other revenue E A 6
Other gains/(losses), net Hipdas,/(&58)F58 6
Operating costs DN
Profit/(loss) from operations R, (EE)
Finance costs BT RAR 7
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBLATE T, (E5H8) 7
Taxation A 8

Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing

REEREFELERHBLZ

operations wmA (E1E)
Discontinued operations EARIEEK
KREFREBORIEEBZ
Profit for the year from discontinued operations S | 9
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF(EE)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHMEEmBRA
Available-for-sale financial assets: AR ER TS EE
— Changes in fair value during the year —AREFEEZ2AFEEH
- Reallisation of change in fair value on disposal ~ — &R N T EZH)
Other comprehensive income for the year, REFEEMEEEA -
net of tax HKREE
Total comprehensive income for the year REEZEALELZE

28

2009

—ETNF

HK$'000

JEEF T

9,531 12,648
21,140 (25,721)
1,797 4,299
26,954 (31,194)
(9,438) (17,268)
49,984 (57,236)
(1,414) (19,308)
48,570 (76,544)
(5,093) 63
(76,481)

1,370

(75,111)

9,980 12,354
(2410)] -
12,354

(62,757)
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2009

—EENF
Notes HK$'000
it3 JEFoT
Profit/(loss) attributable to: OIS ER, (EE)
Equity holders of the Company PN/NSIE ]SS
— from continuing operations —REFEREER (76,499)
— from discontinued operations —REBRIES 664
(75,835)
Non-controlling interests AR R
— from continuing operations — R AR ETS 18
— from discontinued operations —RERKRILETS 706
724
Profit/(loss) for the year NEEER(EE) (75,111)
Total comprehensive income attributable to: T35 2 FEURA 425 :
Equity holders of the Company RR B RERIRR
— from continuing operations — R A BT (64,145)
— from discontinued operations —REBRIEES 664
(63,481)
Non-controlling interests TR
— from continuing operations — RERECEER 18
— from discontinued operations —REBRIEER 706
724
Total comprehensive income for the year TEEZHEBALLE (62,757)
Earnings/(loss) per share from continuing ARRERBRRELREE
and discontinued operations attributable REFELEREBEKLLE
to equity holders of the Company £ BRER(FHE)
for the year (expressed in HK cents) (B
Basic earnings/(loss) per share GREARBF,(FE) 12
From continuing operations REFHELEEEY (78.08)
From discontinued operations RE DA ILETR 0.68
(77.40)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share GREERTR(FER) 12
From continuing operations AR B L ER N/A
From discontinued operations REDRIEES N/A
N/A

The notes on pages 37 to 99 form part of these financial 2372998 » it AUt S M ERE AR5

statements.
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2009
—ETNF
Notes HK$'000
Kt JEEF T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment properties KEYE 13 79,980 58,840
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BE KRR 14 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEENBEE 16 23,682 33,412
103,662 92,252
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables FEUL AR T Ho b R U GRIA 17 7,213 17,322
Time deposits with maturity over 3 months FIEgEBB=1EA 2T H
T2 18 180,438 39,637
Cash at bank and on hand IRITRIR G 5 62,666 139,803
250,317 196,662
Assets classified as held for sale DIEABIEHEZEE 19 85,291
250,317 281,953
Current liabilities TREasE
Other payables and accrued charges HEtER B L ETER 21 50,689
Bank borrowings HRITIEHE 20 1,364
52,053
Liabilities associated with assets classified DA EEEEE 2
as held for sale aE 19 59,592
3,363 111,645
Net current assets RBEEFE 246,954 170,308
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABDER 350,616 262,560
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2009
—ETNF
Notes HK$'000
Kt JEEF T
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Other payables H fth JE S 5R0E 21 36,725 -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 22 23,674 24,683
Deferred tax liabilities EEFREEE 23 5,093 -
65,492 24,683
Net assets EEFEE 285,124 237,877
Capital and reserves BARNFEE
Share capital A&7 25 49,928 49,928
Reserves i 235,172 187,931
Total equity attributable to equity holders AATERBRELER
of the Company e 285,100 237,859
Non-controlling interests RS 24 18
Total equity ERBRE 285,124 237,877

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on EFEER_FT—TF AT NBHERERE

26 July 2010. FE o
Liu Shun Chuen Yeung Sau Chung
BiEz BEH
Director Director
EE EE2

The notes on pages 37 to 99 form part of these financial  F37E99E ~ 3T At EHERFHEPEH -
statements.
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Notes
Kt
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B A rER 15
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H bl RIA 17
Time deposits with maturity over 3 months FEEBB=EAZEH
&R 18
Cash at bank and on hand IRITRIRS 5%
Current liabilities PiEI=RE

Other payables and accrued charges

HAth R 5RIR N T B 21

411

162,627
21,136

184,174

1,421

1,421

Net current assets MENEEFE 182,753
Net assets EEFEE 264,304
Capital and reserves ERRf#E
Share capital A& X 25 49,928
Reserves #HE 26 214,376
Total equity SRR 264,304
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on =ZHE&€2R_—=Z

26 July 2010.

Liu Shun Chuen
BiEE
Director

EBEF

The notes on pages 37 to 99 form part of these financial
statements.
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Yeung Sau Chung
BET
Director

EBEZE

2009

—ETNF

HK$'000
BETIT

84,432

242

39,537
125,958

165,737

12,310

12,310

153,427

237,859

49,928
187,931

237,859

—EFEL A FRBRAERKE

FEITEE Z MR EFEIMREF D
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Surplus Fair value Non-
Share Share account Capital reserve  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium (note ) reserve (note i losses Total interests Total
RER LYERE F2HR
B RbEE () BAgE (W) BitEE b s EH
HK$000  HKB000  HKS000  HKBOOO — HKSO000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK'000
BEFr  BEFr BEFr BEFr BEFr BEFr Bt Bt B
Balance at 1 April 2008 WZZEN\ERA-BzE8 416,064 498,941 265,025 9817 - (971,226) 208,681 3,167 211,838
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profi/oss) for the year RERHA/ (B8) - - - - - (758% (1583 704 75,111
Other comprehensive income 2 ERA
Change infair value of avalable- WAt HEEI AR A TEEE
for-sale financial assets - - - - 12,304 - 12,354 - 12,304
Total comprehensive income 2R A5 - - - - 12,354 (7583 (63481) 724 (62,757)
Transactions with owners HEEAETZRS
Capital reduction TR (411,909 - - - - 411908 - - -
Share premium cancellation FHEROEE - (#1909 - - - 411903 - - -
lssueof sharesonopenofer B ARRELARN 2,080 38,633 - - - - 40,713 - 40,713
Rights issue of shares #RERY 43,687 18,136 - - - - 61,823 - 61823
Early redemption of convertble R BRI AREE
notes - - - 9877) - - 0877) - 0877)
Disposal of subsiciaries HEMBAR - - - - - - - (3,869 (3863
Total transactions with owners S8 AT X245 (366,136)  (395,134) - 087 - 823806 92,659 (3,869) 88,79
Balance at 31 March 2009and  R=EEAFZA=T-RR
at 1 April 2009 ZEENEMA-AZES 49928 143807 255,025 - 1235 (203285 237,859 18 23787
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Proft for the year TEREF - - - - - 43411 43,471 6 341
Other comprehensive income B2 EUA
Change in fair value of avalable- T HEEIREEATERES
for-sale financial assets - - - - 9,980 - 9,980 - 9,980
Realisation of chenge i fainvalue 1 EB S A HHE AR
of avallable-for-sale financial ATEZE
assets on disposal - - - - (6,210) - (6,210) - (6,210)
Total other comprehensive income  E M2 A58 - - - - 3770 - 3710 - 3770
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EWALE - - - - 3770 4347 41241 6 47247
Balanceat31 March2010  WZE-BEZA=t-Az&8H 4908 143807 255025 - 16124 (179784 285100 2 28514
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nlidated S

Notes: MsE -

i. The surplus account represents the difference between the . HERERAQTEBITRAMERRRAIRE
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and —NANEFERITZEEEAMKE—HHBA
the aggregate of the nominal amount of the issued share capital AR BITRANEE KB E RN 25

and other reserve accounts of a subsidiary which was acquired
by the Company pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 1997.

i. Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair . NP ERBEERRE R RS AIHIEE
value of available-for-sale financial assets held at the end of the M EE AT EZEE)FHE -

reporting period.

The notes on pages 37 to 99 form part of these financial  F37E99E ~ 3T At EHERFHEPEH -
statements.
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2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
JEEF T

(75,199)

Cash flows from operating activities REXBMBRERE
Profit/(loss) before taxation including BRERE A, (EE)
discontinued operations (BREERIEER)
Adjustments for: AT BB E
Revaluation (gains)/losses on investment BEYESH ),
properties 18
Impairment losses recognised in respect of TS E B EER
available-for-sale financial assets ZR(EREE
Sundry income related to waiver of amount B BN —REENE
due to a director Rz WA
Gain on disposal of: HENTIER 2 e
Available-for-sale financial assets AMEHEN B EE
Subsidiaries SpEENG
Associates /N
Share of results of associates FEMEEE A RIEA
Interest expenses FEFEZ
Loss on early redemption of convertible notes R ELTHRRERER
Depreciation e
Interest income FEHA

Operating profit/(loss) before changes in

working capital

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables

Rt EBESEBALE

swA (E1R)

R U B R % L At B MR

B ($EA0)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HE A ET A K e B
accrued charges M) /N
Cash used in operations EEAMERS
Interest paid EASHLE

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

EREBMEHR

Net cash used in operating activities

HEEBER SR

Annual Report 2010 & 3§

(21,140)

RED)

(6,210)
(20,701)

(1,597)

759

(1,160)

(261)
(275)

25,721

40,750

(9,522)
(20)

8,096
11,212

1,091
(4,109)

(1,972)

(13,134)

1,944

(13,162)
(9,490)
(112)

(22,764)

35



Cash flows from investing activities
Time deposits placed with bank
with maturity over 3 months
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of investment properties
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Proceed from disposal of rural land
exploitation right
Deposit received from disposal of a subsidiary
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash and
cash equivalents disposed of
Deposit received from disposal of
investment property
Proceeds from disposal of investments property
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets
Receipts of loan receivables
Advance to an associate
Interest income received

REXBERETRE

FRIRTTEIHI R B8
=ARA ZEHFR

A

BAME  BERRE

BAREME
Wi — R B AR

S BB L 1 F BRI P 1S

IR

HE—FRMBARZERR 2

HEMBEAR(EHHREL
RekERHELER) 27

HERENMEZCRATS

HEREMEME

IR
Y HR e B TR
A — = A E)
EHCFIL B UA

IR
HERHHENBEEMS

B3R

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

REEB () P8R E

Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of shares

BEEEMEBRERE
BIRG FB R FEE

Repayment of bank borrowings BEBRITIEE

Repayment of other borrowings EREMEE

Repayment of convertible notes B AR IR

Net cash used in financing activities REEKMERSFE

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRERIFEEE B FE
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FICZHRESRERBEEER

of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

FRZBERERREIEAR

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand

Cash at bank and on hand classified as assets
held for sale

Bank overdrafts

Bank overdrafts classified as assets held for sale

BERERBEBEEIN

RITRFRRE

DERFHEHEBEZIRTT

FREIR e R
RITEX

22

DERRFHEHEBEEZIRTT

BEX

The notes on pages 37 to 99 form part of these financial

statements.
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(140,901)

1,500

19,710
9,000

1,947

(64,185)

(1,009)

(1,009)
(65,730)
127,859

62,129

2009

—ETNF

HK$'000
ABETIT

48,441

2,000

59,251

102,536
(6,452)
(36,000)
(1568,763)

(98,679)

(62,192

190,051

127,859

139,803

46
(285)

(11,705)

127,859

FEITER Z MR EMEIHREF D

HyComm Wireless Limited 3 fEFBIEHR AT



GENERAL

The Company is a public limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section of the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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FESTHBER

(a) &FEEH
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(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2010 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— investment properties (see note 2(d))

— financial instruments classified as available-for-
sale (see note 2(f))

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 4.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interest

2. FESTBE®)

() MIBRRKIFERER

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the
net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity holders of the
Company.
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(Continued)
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()

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interest
(Continued)

Where losses applicable to the non-controlling interests
exceed their interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the non-
controlling interests, are charged against the Group’s
interest except to the extent that the non-controlling
interests have a binding obligation to, and is able
to, make additional investment to cover the losses.
If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the
Group’s interest is allocated all such profits until the
non-controlling interests’ share of losses previously
absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(h)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(s)).

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of
financial position at fair value. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties
is accounted for as described in note 2(p(ii).

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. IXrE&iEEw)

(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method at
the following rates per annum:

(f)

Buildings 2%
Furniture, fixture and equipment 20-30%
Motor vehicles 20-30%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless fair value can be more reliably estimated using
valuation techniques whose variables include only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted
for, depending on their classification, according to the
following policies.

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At end of
each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gains or losses being recognised in profit
or loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated in the statement
of financial position at amortised cost less impairment
losses.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEEHHE e
(Continued)
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(f)

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity
securities (Continued)

Other investments in securities which do not fall into
any of the above categories are classified as available-
for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
fair value reserve, except foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of monetary items such as debt securities which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. Where these
investments are interest bearing, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss. When these investments are
derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is
classified from equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or
they expire.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE&HBZE@)
(Continued)
(g) Leased assets (Continued)
(i)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

(h) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other
than investments in subsidiaries: see note 2(h)
(i)) and other current and non-current receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor or
issuer;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its costs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FrEEHEZEw@)
(Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

a4

(0

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised
cost, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEEHHE e

(Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued) (hy EEBEE)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity () EBERRIZEREREMENK

securities and other receivables (Continued)

- For impairment of available-for-sale
securities, the cumulative loss that has
been recognised in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount
of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEEHHE e

(Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment; and

— investments in subsidiaries (except for those
classified as held for sale or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale) (see note 2(s)).

[f any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses
Impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEEHHE e
(Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

Reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried
at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity
security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the
increase is recognised in other comprehensive
income and not profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEEHHE e
(Continued)
() Trade and other receivables () FEURBRFR R H{FEUER

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(0)(i), trade and other
payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the cash flow statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(m) Employee benefits

2. FESTTHER®)

() Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of
its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s contributions as employer vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

(n) Taxation

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Stat

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

50

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deducible for tax purposes
and the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination).

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and is reduced to the
extent it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. XE&HBEw@)
(Continued)
(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(o)(iii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of
that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Stat

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

52

(i)

(i)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount
that would be determined in accordance with note
2(o)(iii). Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued are
disclosed in accordance with note 2(o)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(P)

(a)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

(i)  Rental income
Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance from properties let under operating
leases, is recognised on the straight-line basis
over the terms of the relevant leases.

(i)~ Service income
Service fee income is recognised as revenue
when the services are rendered.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset excluding
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEEHHE e
(Continued)

54

U]

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations

(i)  Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets or disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of
the assets’ (disposal groups’) previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

(i) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows
of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest
of the Group and which represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan
to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEEHHE e

(Continued)
(s) Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(i) Discontinued operations (Continued)
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale (see (i)
above), if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is
abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
statement of comprehensive income, which
comprises:

—  The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

—  The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

(t) Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

()  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control the
Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TEEHHE e
(Continued)

56

(t)

()

Related parties (Continued)

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of

amendments to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that are

first effective for the current accounting period of the Group

and the Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial
statements

HKAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

e Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements — cost of an investment in a
subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate

e Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment —
vesting conditions and cancellations

e  Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — improving disclosures about financial
instruments

° HKFRS 8, Operating segments

e Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

The amendments to HKAS 23 and HKFRS 2 and
improvements to HKFRSs (2008) have had no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements as the
amendments were consistent with policies already adopted
by the Group. The impact of the remainder of these
developments is as follows:

e HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based
on the way that the Group’s chief operating decision
maker regards and manages the Group, with the
amounts reported for each reportable segment being
the measures reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of assessing segment
performance and making decisions about operating
matters. This contrasts with the presentation of
segment information in prior years which was based on
a disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements
into segments based on related products and
services and on geographical areas. The adoption of
HKFRS 8 has resulted in the presentation of segment
information in a manner that is more consistent with
internal reporting provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management, and has resulted in
additional reportable segments being identified and
presented (see note 5). Corresponding amounts have
been provided on a basis consistent with the revised
segment information.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. &:tHE&#H @
(Continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the period arising
from transactions with equity holders in their capacity
as such have been presented separately from all
other income and expenses in a revised consolidated
statement of changes in equity. All other items of
income and expense are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Corresponding
amounts have been restated to conform to the new
presentation. This change in presentation has no effect
on reported profit or loss, total income and expenses
or net assets for any period presented.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to
HKFRS 7, the financial statements include expanded
disclosures in note 32(e) about the fair value
measurement of the Group’s financial instruments,
categorising these fair value measurements into a
three-level fair value hierarchy according to the extent
to which they are based on observable market data.
The Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions set out in the amendments to HKFRS 7,
under which comparative information for the newly
required disclosures about the fair value measurements
of financial instruments has not been provided.

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the
requirement that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits
should be recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment in the investee, rather
than as income. As a result, as from 1 April 2009, all
dividends receivable from subsidiaries, whether out of
pre-or post-acquisition profits, will be recognised in
the Company’s profit or loss and the carrying amount
of the investment in the investee will not be reduced
unless that carrying amount is assessed to be impaired
as a result of the investee declaring the dividend. In
such cases, in addition to recognising dividend income
in profit or loss, the Company would recognise an
impairment loss. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in the amendment, this new policy will be
applied prospectively to any dividends receivable in the
current or future periods and previous periods have not
been restated.
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4. ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(a) Critical accounting judgments in applying the
Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
significant adjustments.

() Income tax

As required by HKAS 12, provision for deferred
tax is made on the revaluation of investment
properties on the basis and assumption that their
values would be recovered through the receipt of
rental income over the remaining life of the lease
using the income tax rate. Such deferred tax
would only reverse towards the end of the lease
period which extends for decades of years or if
the valuations decline. The Group has no current
intention to dispose of its significant investment
properties, but if the values of the investment
properties were to be recovered through
disposals, no tax would be payable, as there
is no capital gains tax in Hong Kong where the
properties are located and the related provision
for deferred tax would be released.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
(i)  Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
investment properties are stated at fair value
based on the valuation performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer. In
determining the fair value, the valuer has made
the valuation on the assumption that the owner
sells the property in the open market without the
benefit of any deferred term contract, leaseback,
joint venture, management agreement or any
similar arrangement which would serve to increase
the value of the property.

Annual Report 2010 & 3§

4.

FatAE R G

() AHEAFTEEEHEEZEREH
L
RIEAAEEEHEES  EREOMS
A T EAEE -
() Fries

REEBGTEAEZ 125 2R
F o ERRBREENEZEE
AHEBRESTHRBERKIZE
SUWAYRE - BIFEEGHEBER
LTS R IREE R IERE -
HELFHBERREH TF 2
%*iimﬁﬁ“i ﬁ%%

c AEEBRERHELE
&é%% ﬁﬁ&é%¥z1ﬁ
AFEEEERE - RIS ASRTR
F o REREE(MEMTHE)
WHEEAEET - BAAREEH
TERHERS THE -

(b) fEETREARAE R Z R

0

REYREZ 2FlE
RERBERE - ARERE
METRBLEEREXGERM
ETZEEMRSE R FETIR
REEQATER - HEMZHEE
TBRBREBEARRRTSLED
¥ MALER BN EMMELTGER
A4 BERER - £ERE T
B ERRUR - AR
=YE 2 EE -

59



= — | -
e Notes to the Financial Statements ‘% /

R i

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. EXBERDEER

The Group manages its diversified businesses according to
the nature of services. Upon first-time adoption of HKFRS
8 “Operating Segments” and in a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has identified the following five
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

e Carpark management: this segment mainly sub-leases
carparks to generate rental income. Currently the
Group’s carpark operations are located entirely in Hong
Kong.

e Leasing of properties: this segment mainly leases
residential premises to generate rental income and to
gain from the appreciation in the property values in the
long term. Currently the Group’s investment property
portfolio is located entirely in Hong Kong.

e Loan financing: this segment provides lending to
personal and corporate customers. Currently the Group
possesses a money lender license and its money
lending business is entirely carried out in Hong Kong.

e SMS services and sales of goods: the Group
discontinued its businesses in these segments during
the year ended 31 March 2009.

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on bases set out below.

The measurement basis used for reporting segment
results is adjusted profit before net finance costs, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation (adjusted EBITDA) ltems
not specifically attributable to individual segments, such
as gains from disposals of available-for-sale financial
assets, surpluses on revaluations of investment
properties and unallocated operating expenses are
further adjusted and excluded from segment results.
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (@) 7EFE EEREEH)
(Continued)
Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets DEEEBEMBEARTY BEEENRT
and current assets with the exception of investments BEE  WRPEEENIRE REMAK
in financial assets and other unallocated corporate SEATIEERIRBRIN - DB EEIER
assets. Segment liabilities include other payables EYE  EESEENERRESER
and accrued charges attributable to the leasing of DEBETIE 7 B4 FE A OB M FEET B LA
properties, carpark management and loan financing of RESHEREIE ZIRITEE -

the individual segments and bank borrowings managed
directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable WARFAL Rz EDBEEZ HERS
segments by reference to sales generated by those RZENHEEZREZDEZR 2®WH
segments and the expenses incurred by those B e

segments.

Continuing operations

Leasing of Carpark Loan
properties management financing Total
MERE FESER ERmE st

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BHTT BE T BYTT YT

2010 —E-FF
Reportable segment revenue A2FD KA
Revenue from external customers sk EsNIR P 1,809 5,981 1,741 9,531

Reportable segment profit/(loss) T 25 IiFl,/ (Ei8)

(adjusted EBITDA) (4Z3BBEBITDA) (494) (59) 981 428
Interest income from bank deposits #8777 24 18 - 79 97
Interest expense Flemx (272) - - (272)
Revaluation gains on investment 13 & E -z

properties 21,140 - - 21,140
Reportable segment assets 2RI PEE
Investment properties BEMH 79,980 - - 79,980
Trade and other receivables FEMBR TN I E A R 0B 948 623 5,130 6,701
Time deposits with maturity I ABE=EAZ

over 3 months THIFEH 2,503 - 859 3,362
Cash at bank and on hand RITRR LR 352 1,024 9,563 10,939

Reportable segment liabilities AEHIHEE

Other payables and accrued EfhERFIERETER

charges (139) (109) (20) (268)
Deferred taxation ERERIA (5,093) - - (5,093)
Bank borrowings PrEY (25,290) - - (25,290)
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

62

EEBNDIER @)

(Continued)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) DEEE - EBEEREBH)
(Continued)
Continuing operations
FESEER
Leasing of Carpark Loan
properties  management financing Total
nERE EEBER EFEE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT
2009 —EENE
Reportable segment revenue A2HFIHBRA
Revenue from external customers AR P 5412 4,468 2,768 12,648
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 22 &iuFl,/ (E8)

(adjusted EBITDA) (#&F9ZEBITDA) 1,869 (522) 2,712 4,059
Interest income from bank deposits 4877175 S0 A - - 83 83
Interest expense FIEHZ 1,815 - - 1,815
Revaluation losses on investment &L E-ERE

properties (25,721) - - (25,721)
Reportable segment assets AEHIHERE
Investment properties BEWE 58,840 - - 58,840
Trade and other receivables JEUBR 7 I E At B MR IB 435 582 12,465 13,482
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFEHEESE 85,046 - - 85,046
Cash at bank and on hand BIMBeES 2,143 271 11,430 13,844
Reportable segment liabilities AEHIHEE
Other payables and accrued Hit g SERETER

charges (2,114) (225) (402) (2,741)
Liabilities classified as held for sale SR EHERE (37,950) - - (37,950)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (26,047) - - (26,047)
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5,
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(b)

EEBEN D ILER @)

A2/OFBA - B - BERERE
ZHR

2009
—EENF
HK$'000
B For
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue Al 2o EBULA 12,648
Profit il
Reportable segment profit A 2HH T 4,059
Share of results of associates Pak (<L NG S 8)
Impairment losses recognised in respect 3t A] 84 5% B 7% & EE MR 2 R EE IR
of available-for-sale financial assets - (40,750)
Elimination of inter-segment expenses i blEREE] 3,848 -
Other revenue and other gains/(losses), net  E Ut A R E bl zss /(E518 ) #%58 1,840 4132
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HENB A TIWE 20,701 9,522
Gain on disposals of associates S B A B E - 20
Gains/(losses) on revaluation of BEMESH W (BE)
investment properties 21,140 (25,721)
Realisation of change in fair value EERMHEEVBEERER 2
on disposal of available-for-sale NEEZE
financial assets 6,210 -
Finance costs B TR (1,414) (19,308)
Profit for discontinued operations, before &% & D (EHE L N R EE AT
taxation and share of results of associate % 7#5% Fl = 1,353
Unallocated expenses KOEHE (4,183) (8,498)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before BRERTAR S E T, (E518)
taxation 48,570 (75,199)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIZ2MABEE 100,982 171,212
Assets of a disposal group classified as S B AR IEINE 2 HEHREE
held for sale - 205
Unallocated assets KOBEE 252,997 202,788
Consolidated total assets A EERRE 353,979 374,205
Liabilities af&
Reportable segment liabilities AEmAHAE (30,651) (66,738)

Liabilities of a disposal group classified S AR IEINE 2 HEHRI A&

as held for sale
Unallocated liabilities AOWMERE

= (866)
(38,204) (68,724)

(LE9)  (136,328)

(c) Geographic information
The Group only operates in a single geographical
location, that is, Hong Kong. The board considers that
the presentation of segment disclosure by geographical
locations would not be meaningful in the financial
statements and, accordingly, no geographic segmental
analysis is presented.
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6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER GAINS/ 6.

64

(LOSSES), NET

HWA R E Uz, (B518) F

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations Consolidated
RELeRH BRI &

2010
—g-%%
HK$'000
BETT

2009
—TTNE
HK$'000
BT

2010
~z-%F
HK$'000
TR

2009
—TThE
HK$'000
BEFIT

2010
—5-g%
HK$’000
BETT

2009
—ZThE
HK$'000
BEFT

Other revenue
Bank interest income
Other loan interest income

HtA
RITHIEHA
A ERFEMA

Interest income on financial assets
not at fair value through
profit or loss

Miscellaneous

PHRAFEFAREZ
MIFBEMBYA

MR

Other gains/(losses), net
Impairment losses recognised
in respect of available-for-sale
financial assets
Realisation of change in
fair value on disposal of
available-for-sale
financial assets (Note)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries
(Note 27)
Gain on disposals of associates
Net gain on foreign exchange

Rftileis / (B58) 38
SARHENBEERR
ZRERR

(40,750) (40,750)
ET AR
8920 TERY

(Hrt)

HEMBAR YiE
(Hizor)

HEBENR M -

INEU TR 43

26,954

(31,194)

(31,190)

Note:

On 19 June 2009, the Group disposed of 90 million shares of
Tomorrow International Holdings Limited, a listed company in Hong
Kong, for a consideration of HK$19,710,000 (HK$0.219 per share).
The gain on such disposal amounted to HK$6,210,000.

Wi

RZTZNFRNATNE - AEEH%90,000,000
R H R EEERAR(EELTARDRG - K
& A7B%19,710,0007T (F% B 10.2197T) © %A
HE 2 Iz BB 1H6,210,0007T ©
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(crediting):

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(@) Finance costs
Interest on:
Bank borrowings wholly

repayable within five years
Bank borrowings not wholly
repayable within five years

Gonvertible notes
Other borrowings

Total interest expenses on
financial liabilities not
at fair value through
profit or loss

Loss on early redemption of
convertible notes

(b) Staff costs
Salaries, bonuses and
awards (including
directors” emoluments)
Contributions to defined
contribution plan

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
RELEEH BRI
2010 2009 2010 2009
=L s CITNE el CRTNE
LIS HK$'000 BELEX00N  HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
(a) HHAA
THEEZME -
ERRENEE
BRCBROEE
BERTENEHY
BRECBROEE
HRRE
EtbfEE 947
WIERAT(E
STABR I
AEZMERR
Fa 8,096
REEOARRE
pd 11,212
) EIRA
e HARER
(BEEEME)
1,998
TERMHHE IR

86 74

1,967 2,072
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7. BRBIADER](B518)
BBALERL (BB MG/ GEA) -

Consolidated

Fa

2010
~g-%7F
HK$’000
BETT

2009
“TTNE
HK$'000
EETT
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

7. BREADER(EE) @
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations Consolidated
HELEEK BRI &

2010 POV 2010 [EEEPVCE 2010 [PV
enid - Enid = Bkl -
Hiksoo0 UM  Hksooo DGVl  HKs000 TSN

vz and 7 il v Wi

() Otheritems (© HfnEE
Auditors’ remuneration ZE S
- audit - &t
- other services — AR
Depreciation e
Operating lease charges in BEHAENEY
respect of rented premises LERERY 3,832 3,832
Rental income, it ON(RE[G
net of outgoings B) (3,589) (3,589) (3,380)
8. TAXATION 8. %
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of () WaEarmEWsERZBIER
comprehensive income represents:
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations Consolidated
FECEEK BRI &a
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
=i CITHE Ea CTTNF PEesedadl CTTHE
LGOI HKE'000 BRGLE0IIN  HK$'000 BGLEEXNIN  HK$'000
BETT BETT EETFT BETT BT
Currenttax-Hong Kong ~ ENERIE—4
Profits Tax MEH
Provision for the year FREE
Over-provision in BAFERERE
respect of prior years
Deferred tax ERHE
Current year KEE
Attrbutable toa changein &
tax rate

66
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8. TAXATION (Continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of

8. ®IEm)

(@)

comprehensive income represents: (Continued)
The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2010 is
calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the estimated

assessable profits for the year.

(b)

Reconciliation between tax charge/(credit) and

(b)

accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

R EEBER I RIEAE © (8)

ZE-RFEZEBNEH AT E AT
JERFHEMIATIR16.5%( —ETNEF -
16.5% ) {EH i -

WERREFE 2 RIE T (ER)
Baitat (BR) 2HENT :

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

B AnE s, (E518)
FEREER
BRI

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before
taxation

Overprovision of tax paid previously

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of unprovided prior year
tax losses utilised in current year

Tax effect of prior year temporary
difference recognised in current year

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised

Effect on opening deferred tax
balance resulting from a decrease in
tax rate during the year

BRBATEN,(B1R) 2 BEBIA

BECNREZ BEER
TAMB 2 RBFE
BERRBAZ R E

RER ARV ABR MEEE

AEEEHARBHEEEFENRR

BRZRBTE

REECHRBEFERIEZHL

MG E
RERRSEEZNBTE

FRBRT F AT EE R YBEER IR

BB EE

Tax charge/(credit) for the year

REEPIA L, (ER)
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2010 2009
CE-TF s
HK$’000 HK$000
BUET T JERTFT
(76,544)

1,345

(75,199)

8,014 (12,408)

= (25)

527 12,808
(5,124) (3,118)
10 3,278

(58)

(521)

(44)

(88)
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9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group disposed
of the SMS services segment and planned to dispose of the
sale of goods business, which was subsequently disposed
of in April 2009. The operating results of these two segments
were therefore classified as discontinued operations. The
combined profits and cash flows of the SMS services and

SR IEERK
BE_ZTNEF=A=1+—RLFE *&%
B ERARSE D M EIHEEMHER
BEHRZER -_ZEZNFHNALE) - ZWE
DHZEEXERMOBRERIERES - 8
ARBEEMHEEERKE —FTN\FOA—
AEEE 8 HE ARG EHE R B IEHE

sale of goods businesses for the period from 1 April 2008 FALZE

to the respective dates of disposal or the dates of planned PN
disposal, which have been included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, were as follows:

EHRERZAFENNRERE

2010 2009
—z-z; [EEE=IE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T JBHFT
Turnover S 6,431
Other operating income HAbg g A 64
Operating costs eI IN (6,142)
Share results of associates FEARES N R AR 8)
Profit before taxation PR AT 1,345
Taxation R 25
Profit for the year from discontinued FRREBRIEEBZ AT
operations 1,370
Cash flows from discontinued operations BRIEEBZIRERE
Net cash flows from operating activities KEESMERESRETHE 1,292
Net cash flows from investing activities BEFEMBRS 2T (1,880)
Net cash flows REREFHE (588)
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EEM <
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of BEEEATKINEIIEEE EEHE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows: W

Salaries, allowances and

Directors’ fees benefits in kind MPF contributions Total
EZhe e 2HRENEA wESH &t

20 QP o0 EEERVCE o0 EEEROVE i [
SR s IRl v IR v ERll i
Hrsooo GOV Hcsoo ERTCIM  Hrson SOV ks I
e Wil v il 7 il v i

Executive directors gz
Lai Yiu Keung Rk
Liu Sun Chuen B2
Yeung Sau Chung AT
Wan Tk Wing, Peter AER

Independent non-executive ~ BuFiaEE

directors
Ng Wai Hung Rk
Wu Wang Li RiLE
Jacobsen Wiliam Keith Jacobsen William Keith
Tam Chi Ling, Elaine ETR
The remuneration of the directors is within the following SEMENF T HEE -
band:
2010 2009
—Z2-FF ZEThF
Number of Number of
directors directors
EEAH BEFAH
Up to HK$1,000,000 7511,000,0007T3 A T 7
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11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS  11. S %A+

Of the six individuals with the highest emoluments, five (2009: RAEBEREFMALTES AR (ZZEZAN
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in F:ZR)REE  REZMERNM 1045
note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the BT —R(ZETNF  MEB) AL ZE
remaining individual (2009: two) are as follows: SHEET

2010 2009
S5 =
LK HK$'000
g ki

Salaries and allowances Hra MoERL 216 715
MPF contributions SRFES R 24 24
739
The emoluments of each of the individuals with the highest REZMEFE  SEaaMALZBMEN T
emoluments are within the band of HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 BT LR %51,000,0007T 2 EE ©
in both years.
12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12. REF,(E5E)
(a) Basic (a EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the GRERBF TR R RS R FE
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by i MR N E BT TR 2 g TR
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue HEHE -
during the year.
2010 2009
S _TTAF

HK$°000 HK$000
BETT JBHETIT

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity RATIHEARR R B, (E518)

holders of the Company (76,499)
Profit from discontinued operation AT R BN E R I E G F

attributable to equity holders of

the Company 664

(75,835)

Weighted average number of BEBTE RIS (T %)

ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 499,277 97,978
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as the
basic earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31
March 2010 and 2009. The computation of diluted loss
per share for the year ended 31 March 2009 did not
assume the conversion of the Company’s convertible

12. BREF,(F5E) @
(b) #8
HE_ZT—TFR_TTNF=A
“t+—RALFE  ERESRN, (B
BIESHREBREAREF,(BE) - 5t
BHE_TTNF=-A=+—HILEFE
GREEHER - UWEBRLHBAQT

notes since their exercise would result in decrease in AMREE  ATEZSEReE8E
loss per share. IZE B -
13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REY*E
The Group NEME
HK$'000
Vet
Fair value AFE
At 1 April 2008 RZEZN\FMNA—H 189,900
Additions NE 13,698
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —FHM B AR 63,106
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHB AR (100,900)
Reclassified as assets held for sale B ERBEHERE (81,243)
Fair value adjustments N EFE (25,721)
At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 R-ZENF=A=1t—"HE-_ZZAFWMNA—H 58,840
Fair value adjustments NFEFE 21,140
At 31 March 2010 R_ZE—ZTF=F=+—H 79,980
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

72

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2010 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out as of that date by B. |. Appraisals Limited,
an independent firm of qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group. B. I. Appraisals Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and its
staff members have appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuations were arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the same locations and conditions. The valuation gave rise
to a revaluation surplus of HK$21,140,000, which has been
credited to profit or loss, for the year ended 31 March 2010.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

The Group has pledged investment properties to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group, as set out in
note 20.

The carrying value of the Group’s investment properties
comprises:

13. REWH*E )

RZZE—ZTF=ZA=+—R0  ~AEEEKEY
¥ AFEDZEAEEVEREZBLE
B EGEMBBERBREETEERA
AIRZBET 2 AEAEETE  RIABK
FHERARABBIEMESE8 - BB
S AR R D[R R ¥ 2 I A% Mol B
5 o BEMED2ERERE AR TR
BEYMERREzTSHREED - HEEE
S(HIBEB 21,140,000 © EREE -
—ZEFE=ZA=+—HIFEFABK -

AEBERBLEEMESEARDE S HIEE
REEREZ B FEESIGEAHERR
FHE XN BERIIRAIREYE -

BANKIFE20PTEL - ARE D EIFIRE Y XK IE
RFTER —ARIRITRUVE ZHE(R -

AEEREYEZREERRE

In Hong Kong: W&
Long-term leases REMEE
Medium-term leases FHIRE

{0} [0] 2009
CE-TF ks
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
6,840

52,000

58,840
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. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BMENRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Buildings equipment Motor vehicles Total
BAR -
BT EERDE A At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group A& BETT BETT BETT BETFT
Cost or Valuation RAHEE
At 1 April 2008 RZTZNEFNA—H 1,006 24,984 1,866 27,855
Additions NE - 2,495 - 2,495
Reclassified as assets held for sale B pIEAREHELE - (8,137) - (8,137)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBLF (1,005) (19,342) (1,866) (22,213)
At 31 March 2009, 1 April 2009 and ~ RZZEZNF=A=1—H
31 March 2010 —EENFNA-HR
—T-TF=A=1-H - - - -
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE
At 1 April 2008 RZZZT\FHA—H - 20,145 1,866 22,011
Provided for the year REERE - 1,091 - 1,091
Reclassified as assets held for sale ENOBERHEHEEAE - (5,208) - (5,208)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEWB AT - (16,028) (1,866) (17,894)
At 31 March 2009, 1 April 2009 and ~ R-ZZEAE=F=+—H
31 March 2010 “EENFNA-HR
—E-ZF=f=1+—H - - - -
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 March 2010 RZE-—ZTF=ZA=+—H - - - -
At 31 March 2009 RZEENEF=RA=+—H - - - -
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

74

15. B A B R

The Company
¥ /N

2010 2009
CE-TF ks
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR ¢ A 1 610,354
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU I B A FIF IR 144,262 566,030
144,263 1,176,384
Impairment losses recognised BHERRERE (Zral (1,091,952)
81,551 84,432

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2010
are set out in note 33.

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing, except for an amount due of HK$11,967,000
which is being charged interest at Hong Kong prime rate
per annum, and with no fixed terms of repayment. They are
classified as non-current as they are not expected to be
recoverable within the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period.

The aggregate impairment losses amount recognised at
31 March 2010 has been determined by the directors with
reference to the net assets of the subsidiaries.

RIB-BF=A=+—RZEEHNBLRA
BRI HITESS o

R B A RIEAEER - R REET
ERH - EEG BEUBE11,967,0007T 2 K
RIREBEBERFFERTE - EREEZE
BT R EHEERERRTZEAR
e - HESSEARIERS -

RIE-ZF=A=1+—RZEERNES
BRECHERL2EMB AR CEEFE
REEE °
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16.

17.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

16. AIHEMBERE

Available-for-sale equity securities
Listed in Hong Kong and stated at
market value

A ERAES
REE EHATREDIR

2010 2009
2z IR
ZLEQN  HK$'000
grrr
33,412

The Group held approximately 2% (2009: 6%) of the
ordinary share capital of Tomorrow International Holdings
Limited, which is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s available-for-sale equity
securities were individually determined to be impaired on
the basis of a material decline in their fair value below cost
and adverse changes in the market in which these investees
operated which indicated that the cost of the Group’s
investment in them may not be recovered. Impairment
losses on these investments were recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 2 (see note

2(n)(i)-
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—g-%5
HK$°000

FEMRR
FEER(Hrat()
EREFFE

Hit YA (HaE)

Trade receivables

Loan receivables (Note (i)
Loan interest receivables
Other receivables (Note (i)

BN R ERR
ReRENTA

Loans and receivables
Deposits and prepayments

Annual Report 2010 & 3§

The Group
rEE AT

7,213 17,322

AEEREEBHALIAAERATLTA
FIHHBEBREEBR AR ZEBR AL 2%
ZETNF 6%) °

R-ZBEAF=ZA=+—0  AEBEZAH
HER AT S I E QAT EABIERERA
REZSEWIREFATSE 2 MisA T FEE) -
FERAEFEEZS AR ZRET—Ea k@
ZEET  WEREE AT HIRRE - RIE
MEoAE 2 B - R SEREZRERBIEBE
BamP R (R HEE2N)) -

17. BYRF R E A B UK IR

The Company

2009 2010 2009
2id = e
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ard 7 G

16,949
373
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)  17. FEUWNER=h & H b FEURERIE (4)

The aging analysis of trade receivables which are past due B BRR i AR E 2 FEUR 3R 2 RRER D AT 10
but not impaired is as follows: T
The Group
EE

2010 2009
S —TThs
HK$°000 HK$000
wrrr ki

Current =1 5

Less than 1 month past due BAER LA 11E A 263

1 to 3 months past due #HA1 =318 A 616

More than 3 months but B EAGE A sk A E1E 1218 B

less than 12 months past due -

879
884

All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered A FEIBE T HER —FE k(D -

within one year.

The Group has established credit policies. For the sales REBTEREREE - HNEWHEmS -

of goods, the Group allows an average credit period of 30 AREEREZESEFPIBHTFHI0OKXZHBREE

days to its trade customers. Rentals receivable from tenants B o mEREKZHAS MRATFER Y RIE

and service income receivable from customers are payable WA REE RS ERNE T -
on presentation of invoices.
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17.

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,319,000 (2009: HK$879,000) which are past due
as at the reporting date and for which the Group has
not provided for any impairment losses. Based on past
experience of the Group, it is determined that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of past due balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered to be fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to a loan agreement, the Group granted to a
borrower a loan facility which was secured by the shares
of a private company, of which the borrower is one of the
directors.

(i)  Other receivables at 31 March 2009 represented the
outstanding consideration receivable for the disposal of a non
wholly-owned subsidiary. The outstanding consideration was
received during the year ended 31 March 2010.

TIME DEPOSITS WITH MATURITY OVER 3
MONTHS

The effective interest rates on the time deposits are between
0.2% and 0.7% per annum. These deposits have maturities
of 181 to 187 days.

The carrying amounts of the time deposits are denominated
in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars.

Annual Report 2010 & 3§

17.

18.

FE YR BR TR I EL At FEURFR I8 ()
AEBRWRFEHRBIFREES LB
1,319,000 7t (=T Z N4 « #B¥879,0007T)

ZRMARS - ARG A MC BN - ERE
3 S AF DRV EE R B R - RIBAKE
BIELER  ANMEEERARBEAR( M
EHRDBR AR 28N - MR ABAE
HIGHRIERERE - AREL B L SER
FrA A o

EE
) RE—OERHE  FEERERARLZ

EREE - U—HELARRZBROEER
MERARZRAERZ—

iy M-TEAFE=ZA=+—HzZEMmEKFE
EREE—HFE2EMBRARIERZ &R
RE - BRREERBEE-_ZT—ZF=A
=+ —BILFEURE -

28 HEB3ME A 2 EHER

EHERZEBRFNENTEF02EZ07
[E - thEFERZEIEH A1812187H

ERERZ REEASETREEIIE -
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19.

20.

78

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets held for sale as at 31 March 2009 related to
Oriental Gain Properties Limited and Plotio Group, and the
investment property held for sale. The major classes of assets
and liabilities comprising the operations classified as held for
sale at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

: ?#1’?%1'&‘1%}*

“ERNFZAZT - HZBEHEEE
ﬁ&?@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ A N Plotio&= BIA K 5
FIHEREYE - NREMEERE - 815
DEAFIFHEZEBZEIBREERAGT
BRI

2010 2009
—z-z7 [Pk
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T JEFoT
Investment properties WEWE 81,243
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENRE 2,929
Trade and other receivables JE U BR 3 N LA e U B0 1,073
Cash at bank and on hand RITNIR S 45 46
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFIEHERE 85,291
Trade and other payables JETBR N HoA A5t Z0E (7,498)
Amount due to a director Bt —REEHE (15,500
Bank borrowings BITEE (35,792)
Tax liabilities BIEAE (106)
Deferred tax liabilities RLFIBEE (696)
Liabilities associated with assets classified P18 AR EHEEE 7 1HH
as held for sale afE (69,592)
Net assets classified as held for sale DR AEEHEEEFE 25,699
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 20. EEEH
The Group AREEE
At 31 March 2010, the Group’s borrowings were secured R-ZZE—ZTF=RF=+—H KEHEZE
by first legal charges over the investment properties of B LAB#70,000,000 T (ZEFNF B
HK$70,000,000 (2009: HK$129,743,000). 129,743,00070) 2 EMEZ F—FTHA

TR -
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CHARGES

21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 21. HittfEFER BT E

The Group The Company
A%H AR

2010

—z_g%
HK$'000

Accrued charges fEEtE M

Other payables — within one year (Note) ~ H i JE kB —
—ER ()

Deposits received Blize

BN —REEHR

Amount due to a director

Other payables — More than one year H o FRE
but not exceeding five years (Note) BR—FETER
REME)
Financial liabilities measured at REBEN AT EZ
amortised cost HBBE

All of the other payables classified under current liabilities are
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one
year or are repayable on demand.

Note:

The amount of approximately HK$36,725,000 (2009:
HK$35,583,000) is the outstanding balance of the consideration
payable together with the accrued interests for the acquisition of a
subsidiary by the Group. The repayment terms for the consideration
together with the interest accrued thereon has been extended to 31
December 2012. Therefore, the related payable balance has been
reclassified as a non-current liabilities accordingly. The amount is
charged at the interest rate of 4% per annum before 31 December
2009 and at 1% per annum thereafter. A share charge over the
shares of Million Good Group Limited as security for this other
payable was released during the year ended 31 March 2010.

The creditor in respect of this unsecured other payable is the
spouse of Mr. Choi Chiu Fai, Stanley, who was appointed as an
executive director and deputy chairman of the Company on 23 April

2010.

22. BANK BORROWINGS

BEFT

1,717

10
20

1,747

36,725

38,472

2009
ZTTNF
HK$'000
JEETFIT

2010
—z-g=
HKS$'000
BEFT

2009
—TThF
HK$000
BEFT

1,421

12,310

50,689

50,689 1,421

DRRRBBEZ A RMENFURBEHR
—FRBERERRRARAEEREE -

Hiiz -

BEE 36,725,000 (Z T NF + B
35,583,0007T) Z FIE AR EE G KE —HNEA
R ASZ N ZREEHEREFFLE - B8
REEREAFEZHREIEEE T ——F+=
A=+—8 At ' Bz ENEHREENRER
ERBERE - ZEEN _TENF+-_A=+—H
BRERRABHENE BB FHXRB1E -
R ELMFE S FIE 2 IR FTS KMillion Good Group
Limitedf&h 2 R EREREBEE_T—TF=A
=+—HILFERER -

R R AR REZ BRARSRELE Y
Ml SFPEEEN _T-TFENA_+=ARE
ERERRPITESREIER -

22. RITIEE
The Group The Company
A& AR

2010

e
HK$’000

Borrowings comprise: EEAE:
Bank loans FATER
Bank overdrafts PATEX

Annual Report 2010 & 3§

BEFT

24,753
537

25,290

2009 2010 2009
eisd = il
HKk8000 BTN HK$000
BT YT BETT

25,762
285

26,047
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22. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 22, R1TEE )

The Group The Company
AEHE AR

2010 2009 2010 2009
—z-z; Rt ORd -—z-z; LI
N Hksooo TSN HKS000

BT BEFT BT BEFT

The borrowings are repayable as follows: &7 EZHimT :

Within one year or on demand —ENGEEK
More than one year, —Ff - BTER
but not exceeding two years WE
More than two years, Mm% - BTER
but not exceeding five years k3
More than five years hiik
Less: Amount due within one year or B FIRRBaR
on demand included in R—FREE
current liabilities HEERER
Z2E (1,616) )
Amount due after one year —E BT HE 23,674 24,683
All borrowings are secured. Details of the assets pledged FIERENAREEAEE BHEMEESE
are set out in note 20. BT EE20 ©
23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 23. BEBIEAR
The Group $%
The components of deferred tax liabilities provided in RERA BN RABEE 2 ELEHIEAE
the consolidated statement of financial position and the Z%HEJZ*E A RRERNZEBIT

movements during the year are as follows:

Accelerated tax PRC land
depreciation Tax losses appreciation Total
MEBIBRE HEEE Rl L it B E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JEEFIT JEEFT JEETFT EETFT
At 1 April 2008 R-2BFMA-H 3,356 (2,597) 3,000 3,759
Effect of change of tax rate & (192) 148 - (44)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FEEREN BRI/
profit o loss GEN -t 198 (217) - (19
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - (3,000) (3,000)
Reclassified as liabilities associated with DB REE
assets held for sale HERERWERE (3,362) 2,666 - (696)
At 31 March 2009 RZEENEF=A
=+-A - - - -
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23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 23. ELEBIEE B )
The Group (Continued) AEE(E)
Accelerated tax PRC land
depreciation Tax losses appreciation Total
MEHIBHE BEEE HELHEE FoH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JEEFT JEEFT JEETFT JEETFT
At 1 April 2009 RZZZNFMA-AH - - - -
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to profit or loss  EEAIERNEEIR /
(ftAE:) 5,496 (403) - 5,093
At 31 March 2010 RZE-ZF=A
=1+—A 5,496 (403) - 5,093
The Company PN

At 31 March 2010, the Company has unused tax losses
of HK$1,655,000 (2009: HK$44,494,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 24.

The HK$150,000,000 secured convertible notes were issued
by the Company on 4 February 2008. Each note entitled the
holder to convert to one ordinary share at a conversion price
of HK$0.10. Conversion could occur at any time between
4 February 2008 to 3 February 2011. The Company was
entitled to redeem the notes at a value equal to 105% of the
principal amount. Interest of 5% per annum was to be paid
annually in arrears.

The convertible notes contained two components identified
as the liability and equity elements. The equity component
was reported in the equity section under the heading
“Capital Reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component was 5.29%.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Company
redeemed the whole amount of the convertible notes.

Annual Report 2010 & 3§

NZZT—FTF=A=1+—8  KRAREXRD
AT IE 5188 11,655,000 ( Z BT L4 -
7 #44,494,0007T ) AT ) A ABK B R 2R )
BN RAETEE B aFIAOR « #r SRR
ERTHAE - RIBEB I ER AL o

AR ERE
ARBRZZEENF-_AMNABETEE
150,000,000 c 2 B EH A R ZR - B
ZRE TEE AR R (ES K010 E
m—REBER  WARZZEEN\F-AMNA
BT -——FZA=AHREERFER - A2
R ERIEHSENAERE105% 2 BEELE
B BRZFEBUFRNERSEFERTFH
SN

HE_ZZNF=ZA=+—RLFE X2
ElEES QE i ES R
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 24, AR EE R
An analysis of the movements of the liability component of B EEBELS 2 EFE O TEHYWOT -

the convertible notes is set out below.

The Group

and the

Company

REHR

ARAT]

HK$’000

BT

Liability component at 1 April 2008 RZZEZN\FMA—AZBESS 137,674
Interest charged BRI 5,332
Transaction cost amortised B B A 796
Interest paid BEAFE (6,334)
Early redemption of convertible notes RREE SR RE (137,468)

Liability component at 31 March 2009, »
1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010
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25. SHARE CAPITAL

25, BRA

Number of ~ Amount per
shares share Amount
Gl SheE &%
'000 HK$ HK$'000
TR JBET BT
Authorised SETE
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZNFMA—H 20,000,000 0.100 2,000,000
Shares subdivision (Note (i) BB (H32) 1,980,000,000 N/A N/A
Share consolidation B 4& B
— (Note (i) —(B2) (1,600,000,000) N/A N/A
- (Note () — (W) (380,000,000) N/A N/A
At 31 March 2009, 1 April 2009 and R-ZEZNF=A=+—H"
31 March 2010 “EENFNA-HRK
—Z-TF=ZF=+—H 20,000,000 0.100 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1 April 2008 RZZZNFMA—H 4,160,639 0.100 416,064
Capital reduction (Note (j) BB (A7) - N/A (411,903)
Share consolidation (Note (i) B & Bt (AT ) (3,328,511) N/A N/A
Issue of shares on open offer (Note (ii)) NRBEREITIRG (H5 (i) 416,064 0.005 2,080
Share consolidation (Note (iv)) Bin & o (B () (1,185,782) N/A N/A
Rights issue of shares (Note (v)) HERRET TR (i) 436,867 0.100 43,687
At 31 March 2009, 1 April 2009 and R-ZEZNEF=A=+—-H"
31 March 2010 “ETNENA-BR
—E-TF=A=1+—H 499,277 0.100 49,928
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2009, the movements in
share capital of the Company were as follows:

84

M

Pursuant to a circular dated 8 May 2008, a special
resolution for a capital reorganisation involving capital
reduction, a subdivision and the share premium
cancellation was passed in a special general meeting of
the Company held on 2 June 2008. Upon approval, the
capital reorganisation became effective on 2 July 2008
to achieve the following:

(@) Capital reduction: the issued shares were reduced
by cancelling the Company’s paid-up capital to
the extent of HK$0.099 for each issued share
so that the nominal value of each share was
reduced from HK$0.10 each to HK$0.001 each.
Based on approximately 4,160,639,000 shares in
issue, the issued share capital of the Company of
approximately HK$416,064,000 was reduced by
approximately HK$411,903,000 to approximately
HK$4,161,000.

(b)  Subdivision: each authorised but unissued share
was subdivided into 100 shares of HK$0.001
each.

(c) Share premium cancellation: the amount of
approximately HK$411,903,000 standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the
Company as at 31 March 2007 was cancelled.

Pursuant to the circular dated 11 August 2008, an
ordinary resolution for share consolidation was passed
in a special general meeting of the Company held on 27
August 2008. Upon approval, the share consolidation
became effective on 28 August 2008, every 5 shares of
the Company at HK$0.001 each was consolidated into
1 consolidated share at HK$0.005 each. The number
of issued shares of the Company thereby became
approximately 832,128,000 shares at HK$0.005 each.

h = -
‘W ‘

25. JRA )

BE_T

FhAE=ZA=+—HILLFE &2

BIZRABEINT

U

$ETJ§ FHA-ZTN\FLANBZAE

C —IEBBRAEAE SRR
ﬁ A RSB ) 2 BIRAE
RER-ZZN\FRABETZAR
RIREFRIA GRS - BHER - 1
ZEZ)N\FAH ZHERAREEEKE
FELAETTT YRR |

@@ AR BREFHEARAZE
B A% A 5 7% 7 5 0.099 JT A BIl R
EEITRG - BESREET
&4z BESHTREE0.10T
HIR = BB 0.001 T © RIE
#9 4,160,639,000 & B 2 17 & 19
FTE  RNRAZEBEITRALNE
& 416,064,000 7T B H & 40 75 ¥
411,903,000 7T £ /& # 4,161,000
5T

(o) 4 FROETERBEITRDIF
41510088 = I EE B ¥ 0.001 7T
2R e

) FFHEKkMEE  FTHEHEARBRG
/ﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\_ == ‘t¢ A= +_
B 2 #EBR 4978 %411,903,0007T °

ﬁEH*“EHHE_ SNEFENA+—HZB

AR AR EERER
Eﬂ_yyﬂiﬂﬂ TEBERTZAE

NAIRRFRIASERB - Bt EE

BHEHR=ZZEZENFNA=ZT+N\HE
B AR R)B5REMEEER0.0017T
2 BB A0 A1 SR ES%0.005
TLZEHRN - RERARZBEEITR
DB #)/4832,128,000 & & I E &
#£0.0057T 2 i1
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(i)

After the above share consolidation as stated in
note 25(ii) above became effective, the Company
proposed to raise approximately HK$41,600,000,
before expenses, by way of an open offer of not more
than approximately 416,064,000 offer shares at a
price of HK$0.10 per offer share on the basis of one
offer share for every two consolidated shares. The
open offer became unconditional on 17 September
2008 and approximately 416,064,000 offer shares
at HK$0.005 each were issued. The issued share
capital of the Company thereby became approximately
HK$6,241,000, representing approximately
1,248,192,000 shares at HK$0.005 each.

Pursuant to the circular dated 8 January 2009, an
ordinary resolution for share consolidation was passed
in a special general meeting of the Company held on
23 January 2009. The share consolidation became
effective on 29 January 2009 whereby every twenty
shares of the Company at HK$0.005 each was
consolidated into 1 consolidated share at HK$0.10
each. The number of issued shares of the Company
became approximately 62,410,000 shares at HK$0.10
each.

After the above share consolidation as stated in note
25 (iv) above became effective the Company proposed
to raise approximately HK$62,900,000, before
expenses, by way of a rights issue of not more than
approximately 436,867,000 rights shares on the basis
of seven rights shares for every consolidated share.
The rights issue became unconditional on 26 February
2009 and approximately 436,867,000 rights shares at
HK$0.144 each were issued.
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25, BRA ()

(i)

RS RE25(i) BT A% 19 A B A R
RNAFEIZ G EMRE HHIR (DR —
REBEERDZEE  UEREERMNE
¥010TL 2 BISIR 2 RRABEETEZ NG
416,064,000 % B E M n - EHLEED
7 #£41,600,0007T (AR IBRFAZAT) © &
FRECHR ST N\FNLATLHEKA
R 0317 49416,064,000 % & A%
EEE0.005 T 2 B ERD « A QA
2 BETIRAN B #E%6,241,0007T
FHE P #71,248,192,000 I8 & JE FE 75
#0.0057TZ B 5 °

BIEBHAE-_TTENF—ANBZE
B —TEBABBROAEHZ TERAERD
R-ZERE-A-+=F8TZAR
AR RIAEE®E - RZTTNF
—AZt+hBRMHEFHERE - AQF]
B+ R EREESK0.0057T .2 KK
BEEMAIKREREBESE%010T2E
B - EEARR 2 BEITIRNEE
#1562,410,00088 B IR E B 0.107T
2R o

W STHY EE 25(iv) B it B 1 A BF A 2K
& RREEHRERE —RE RGO
R D 2 2 - REERT
% 1A #49436,867,000 ¢ L AZ A 15 - #E it
£ &) 1£62,900,000 7T (ARG F X
AT o R _FETZAF A =+7<H
FRABEAGM - WIETIRAEAESE0.144
TC 2 B8 21T 49 436,867,000 I (1 A% A%

{/\ °
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26. RESERVES

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below.
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26. %

REBGRA DS MON M EAREHZ
HRANFEEEREHR - NRAERER
BARFONRFHEMEBFHBET

Share Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses Total
(Note)
RAVRE BAfGEE BABE ZEER @
(H1st)
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
JEETT JEETT BT BT BT
The Company VAN
At 1 April 2008 RZTZN\FHA—H 498,941 9,877 555,308  (1,271,504) (207,383
Capital reduction PR AE3E - - - 411,903 411,903
Share premium cancellation R IDEE (411,908) - - 411,903 -
Placement of new shares Bl & 2R 38,633 - - - 38,633
Rights issue of shares HARETIR R 18,136 - - - 18,136
Early redemption of convertible notes 12 R 5 [El ] iR 245 - (9,877) - - (9,877)
Total comprehensive income for AEE2EWNALE
the year - - - (63481)  (63.481)
At 31 March 2009 RZTTNE=RA=1—H 143,807 - 565,303 (511,179) 187,931
At 1 April 2009 RZTZNFEA—H 143,807 - 555,303 (511,179 187,931
Total comprehensive income for RAFE2HERALE
the year - - - 26,445 26,445
At 31 March 2010 R-ZT-ZEF=A=1—H 143,807 - 555,303  (484,734) 214,376
Note: st -

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of a former subsidiary
at the date on which the Group reorganisation became effective
and the nominal amount of the share capital of the Company issued
under the Group reorganisation in 1997.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
contributed surplus is also available for distribution to shareholders.
However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(@)  the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

ARRZBNEERNEBERENE A —RHATH
BARzEGARRESERE- NN tFEESEA
BITZARBIRAERRZEMH

BEBRE-NN\—FRRVEERIA)  BAHEE
TR IR TR A ERIIERT - AFS
SEHAEESRIRNESHIEL DK

(@ ARERINEHIRN RS EEEESH
BfE &

b RAREEZAEZREEEEMENREEME -
BEEITRAREO HER AN -
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27. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 27. HEMBE LT

2010 2009
SN —TThs
ZLEQN  HK$'000
grrr

Net assets disposed of: T EEFE -
Investment properties &Y 100,900
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB R EHE 4,319
Prepaid lease payments EANRES S 13,175
Interest in associates /N £ 2,503
Trade and other receivables JE U BR 3 e E A IR SR IB 1,073 150
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS R 47 272
Trade and other payables FEABR A S E b FE (S RRIA (22,998) (7,261)
Tax liabilities HEAE (106) (1,179
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE (696) (3,000)
Bank borrowings RITEE (35,792) (41,8095)
Non-controlling interest released FRRRFEFERRAE RS = (3,863)
Net assets disposed of I EEEFE 64,211
Gain on disposals (Note) R (M EE) 9,622

73,733

Consideration satisfied by: REZFHAR -
Cash consideration ReRE 48,713
Deposits received S EES 21,420
Consideration receivable FEMARAE 3,600

73,733

Net cash inflow arising on disposals: HEEFSHESTRAFELE -
Proceeds from disposals & RS 5RIA 42,900 70,133
Deposits received = (10,000) (21,420)
Bank and cash balances disposed of Frit S 8R1T RIS 54 (47) (@272)
Bank overdraft disposed of FTHERITE X 11,706 -

44,559 48,441

The subsidiaries that were disposed of during the year
contributed a loss of HK$113,000 (2009: HK$179,000) to
the Group from operating activities for the year.

Note:  Gain on disposal of subsidiaries for the year ended 31
March 2010 represents consideration of HK$1,000 for
disposal of Plotio Limited and its subsidiaries (“Plotio
Group”) plus net liabilities of Plotio Group amounted to
approximately HK$20,700,000 released upon disposal.

Annual Report 2010 & 3§

RAFEEEHHBE AR AREFFANLLE
SR E B 113,000 ( ZEZHE B
#179,0007T,) ©

Wit HEZZ-TFE-A=+—HLEFEZ
IS B B8 2 AUz 4 H & Plotio Limited
R EH B AT ([PlotiofE @ |) 2 (RIBHEE
1,0007C + S ANE &SRS 2 PlotiokE &
& FEE4)/8%20,700,0007T °
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28. OPERATING LEASES 28. K&EHE
The Group as lessee AEBERFEEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had R EEEARE - NEERE T THEEL
commitments for future minimum lease payments under EHERRREEMB S 2 AER T 5 EFHE
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: HA -
2010 2009
S —TTas
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T JEETFT
Within one year —FR 329 402
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KERENTIEREER B EEEISEN
Group for the car parks under management. Leases are ZE o MAKHEREI Y - FHAREME -
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are MmEAAH S EETE -

fixed during the term.

The Group as lessor AEBEASEAA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RREREAERE - AEEDEBPH T
with tenants for the following future minimum lease RIREARMEEETL :

payments:

2010 2009
S il ==
LN HKS'000
vz Ik

Within one year —FR 499 4,369
In the second to fifth years inclusive E-=RHE (BEERME) = 181

4,550
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group joined a
mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for
all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of independent
trustees.

Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group in respect of the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions specified therein. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions payable in
future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to
the consolidated income statement represent contributions
payable by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the MPF Scheme. During the year, the retirement benefit
scheme contributions, net of forfeited contributions utilised,
if any, amounted to approximately HK$845,000 (2009:
HK$590,000).

At the end of reporting period, the Group had no significant
forfeited contributions available to reduce contributions
payable by the Group in future years.

Annual Report 2010 & 3§

29. RIKEFIFHE
B-_TZTF+_F—Rik  AEEAES
2EEELH-IFAFIEAESE([8THE
©ErE]) - BESFEITIRERHIMAES
TENEFIR RS AT EEERERL -
BEESFBIZEE  REBMELAEREGZ
EeNEREE 2 EEDFIFE -

REeESHEZHRA - BEREREAS
BIRMANFTA 2 R Azt BEH MR - K
SEBREES B 2 —EERBRIEZE
TERIEEPAF MR o B A& RUHRAT

R RIR A -

BiRE e &R 0B 2 RINEFIF B RUAR
EERAESFERAIRTRA 2 b R ER 2 47
;oo FR - RREFEEIHZK(ERERA
ZRWHEFR (A ) ) 49751845,000L (=&
ZNEF ¢ B%590,0007T) °

RBEHRARE - AEBRUEEADRK
AT OB D R IR E A KB 2 K o
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) The Group did not have any transactions with related
parties during the year. The related party transactions
for year ended 31 March 2009 are set out below:

() Transactions

Service income received

EREBRA
2010 2009
=L CITNF
Notes RELEXIN  HK$000
hit LT
Plotio Property and B EEE
Management Company BB A7
Limited f

Plotio Investment (HK) ~ BFI{HFE (%)

Limited BRAR fl
Plotio Property BN EER
Consutants Limted B4R fl

Lee WaiEngineering ~ Fl#£ T2

Company Limited BRAR fl
KeungKee Cleaning %2 32R%

Senvices Company BRAR

Limited f)

90

HK$’000
Vi

30. BEALIRS
(@) ZNEERE R MBS A LT
%5 BE_ETEAF=A=+—AHIt
FEZBEALZZOT

n =5

Architectural, structural,
material and electrical

Rentals paid Service fees paid service fees paid
EREESE TR
Bfis 2k WAREIREE

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
-Z¢ Wbkl ~Z-Z7 Byl “Z-ZF Emkidika
[ HKS'000 EEEX0  HKS000 B0
Vvl 2t 77 WEigea i WEiara

(1843

(291)

(56)

(19
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 30. BEALRF @)

(@ (Continued) (@)
(I) Balances

€

) &gk

Amounts due from
related parties

FEURBAEE A 5018
2010 2009
—z-—z; [EE=VEC
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat B F T JBMFoT
Plotio Property and AR EEEER
Management Company Limited A ] 0 & % (i) 198
Plotio Investment (HK) Limited AAFIRE(EB)BR
A7 0) & % (i) 124

Amounts due from
related parties

FEURBEE A 508
2010 2009
CE-TF b ys
Notes HK$°000 HK$ 000
Wiz BT T BT

Plotio Property Consultants Limited & Fl|#fith Z B8 E A R

N () & X (i) 32
Plotio Property & Management A EEERR
Company Limited NE] ) & X (i) 599
Amounts due to a director
BN—EESHE
The Group The Company
FEE PN/

2010 2009 2010 2009
Notes —E-TF “ETAE —E-ZF —2TNE
Ktat HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT

Mr Lai Yiu Keung Ly (i)

Annual Report 2010 & 3§
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

31.

92

(@ (Continued)

(I) Balances (Continued)
Notes:

()  Plotio Property and Management Company
Limited, Plotio Investments (HK) Limited,
Plotio Property Consultants Limited, Lee Wai
Engineering Company Limited and Keung Kee
Cleaning Services Company Limited were
former subsidiaries of the Group in which Mr
Lai Yiu Keung (“Mr Lai”), a former director of the
Company, had beneficial interests. No income
was received from or expenses paid to these
companies for the year ended 31 March 2010.

(i)~ The amount due from a related party is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The
amount due is included in the balance of “Trade
and other receivables” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

(i)~ The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and
has no fixed terms of repayment.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at reasonable costs.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure an optimal capital position and
shareholders returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group prevailing and projected
capital expenditure and projected investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may consider the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares and/or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The Group assesses the total equity presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of financial position for capital
management purposes.

30. BEALXRZ @)

@ (&)

() #eR(E)
W3t -

() BIFHEEXERAT - B
A (BA)BRAR - BFLF
WEBRARAIR - FlgEITEE
PR K& a0 8RR AR AR
HAAEENNBAR © BARQ
AR E SRRt ([REE])
REZEAREEER R - #HE
—E-TFEZA=S+—ALF
B WERE SRR ZWAK
Mt E AR S 2 -

(i) ER—BEEALZRERER
- REEBARERER - R
FiRaMBARRRIAT B
R EABFEUGRIA | 2 R A

(i) RRAEEF  RENEETE

1. EXRERER

AEEBEREAZ T2 A RAREREER
BREEBZREN  BRAKENEBRE
an MRS RT T S AL ok 2 B8 B B
NEEKAESRE - BE/BRGRMD
o W REMERSA AR -

AEBFEREGGH REEEENERE B
TERIAEHEERZARESHE RFEH
BAR BERERERE - NEREBIER
BAHRO B AT A R [l 4 -

RERFIARELRGR  AEBHEERIK
MERERZBEERE  ARREREER - 317
RN JHEEENRLAE -

REAERME @ AEEMEREEELES
MR EZ °
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and equity price
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a) Creditrisks
The Group’s credit risks are primarily attributable to
loans receivable and trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group minimises the credit risks on loans
receivable by obtaining certain guarantees and
collateral from borrowers and the directors have
delegated a team to be responsible for credit checks
on borrowers.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and takes into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risks, without taking
account of any collateral held, is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement
of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowances.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the

Group’s exposure to credit risks arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 17.
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32. Bk MmERE
AEEEREANEBFELZ Y - RY
Be  FIRRBREBREAR - ZZERAT
SCRTI 2 T  7  ER J A 5 E FR
) o

(@ EERR
AEBZEERBREZRABKETA
R RIS AR R R A RN RIE - BIRER
FRIEEBRUBBERMAX ZEE
[E\ Bz o

AEEEBEBRARGE THERERE
W AEEREEBKERZEER
b BERCZR—HEEK BEERE
RAZER -

MEMARR R A BN FANS - E%
R EERBEEE TEENMAT,PE
TEBMEERE - LEFEEERFB
EREE RO IR E B S - A
REREPURBTPEEEBEMERLE
RENFEER - —RM 5 AEET
BREFWEUERR -

Y Et RERASAERRZBERT -
AEEEAR 2z ZEEERBR BTN
NEANEMBEEZREE - EMNERE
BB R

BRAAKEEAZ R A B ART R H A
YR FERB 2 B E(ELREER
FLERBTRE17
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) SRS ()
(b) Liquidity risks b) FBESER

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermained
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company pay:

AEFEBETENEEEREEEZAN
ReElE eRACBEKZERRE
REEEFARNEHRESF R - HE
ERENE T AR KT AEE
RABFREHA - REBENBEESTEH
%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ&%@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
© AREIR BEAEFT R 0IR & 1B L BB RS
ﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁ B5 AR IE T BEETEHAE
MBI AGERE R - WENHES
MEBZREBESTK -

Ti’%%ﬁﬁ”$%l&$’&ﬂﬁﬂ‘&ﬁﬁﬁ’\\$&
= HRAERE 2 RIS NI AFE
E*Eﬁfz/a\%@tzifiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmi(@%
REFAHNE - HRFEF X - A
WERRE ARBEREZERHFE) A
RAEBRARBANK 2 &F B HE
g

2010
2-%f
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1yearor less than less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2years 5years 5years
etz
REBRE e BE-% BEmE
HREE REAH EZX BYRmE BOREE BBLE
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Vtcdp Vitdp Vit B¥Tr Vi BETR

The Group 158

Other payables and accrued charges  Z N ZUAREER
Bank borrowings HifeE

The Company G|

Other payables and accrued charges  Z e AR EER
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

32. B R EE )

(b) Liquidity risks (Continued) (b) FEBESERRE)
2009
“3ENE
Total More than More than
contractual Within Tyearbut  2yearshut
Camjing  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
Atz
AEBFE —Ef5 s s TR
BHE i EEX [EnmE EDASIES BALE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BETT Vi BT BEFT BEFT
The Group pis 3o
Other payables and accrued charges  E-ft el 78 et 2 3 50,689 50,689 50,689 - - -
Bank borrowings BfEE 26,047 28,898 1,384 1,374 4,056 22,084
76,736 79,587 52,073 1,374 4,006 22,084
The Company LA
Other payables and accrued charges  E-ft el 78 st 2 3 12,310 12,310 12,310 - - -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Interest rate risks

The Group’s interest rate risks arise primarily from bank
deposits and bank borrowings. These deposits and
borrowings bear interest at variable rates and, thereby,
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risks and
fair value interest rate risks respectively. The Group’s
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set
out in (i) below.

96

(c)

()

(i)

SRS ()
FIRER
¢E@%§2ﬂwﬂngxaﬂﬁﬁ

(©

2010
—2-ZF
Effective

interest rate

Interest rate profile

Variable rate borrowings BZEEE
Bank borrowings RITEE
Total net borrowing FEEERE

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in the interest rates of variable
rate borrowings and bank savings prevailing at
the reporting date, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s
profit after tax and decrease/increase accumulated
losses by approximately HK$370,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2010 (2009: decrease/increase
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses
by approximately HK$405,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point
increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
end of reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2009.

BERAIR
%

1.1361%

AEIRITIEE - WEFE
7'F'J+u+,%\
RSN S EN

R ERF 8
BLAREEDRIAZE LR
FEMERR - EEEM

B AR BRI R FHIEEN T B ()R

0 FIFEFHE
The Group
K&EE
2009
—TENE

Effective

interest rate

ERFI=
HK$°000 % HK$'000
BETT BRI
0.9554% 26,047
26,047

(i)

BREE T
HENZEEBERE RN RS A
HARITHRENEEREA T
PR100MEE R, - MATA H s
BrEg  ABE-—ZT—ZTF=A
—t+—BHLFEAEERFEE
FHGIE 0,5 > 49748 370,0007T
R REHEEER D BN S
370,000 (ZZETNF  A&H
BB EE R 2 BERD 1
HN47E#405,0007T) °

ERBRES T HEREMEE R
BERRERFEHAZES > X
ERNFEEZBMFENBT
AMERERE o L7 T 100
HIEEEEHET —EAFERS
H ) 468 SR L BA R s N R AT R 3R
BIEEEMENMG - —TTNEF
Z AN TR RR AT
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Equity price risks

(e)

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets (see Note 16).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group observes
the investee company’s operations and development,
and seeks to obtain an understanding of their business
management through participation in their directors’
meetings.

It is estimated that an increase/decrease of 1% in
the respective quoted share prices of these financial
assets, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s net assets and
fair value reserve by approximately HK$237,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: HK$334,000).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s fair value reserve that would
arise assuming that the changes in the respective
quoted share prices occurred at the reporting date
and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to equity price risks at the reporting date. It is
also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity
investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant share prices that
none of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets
would be considered impaired as a result of the short
term fluctuations of the relevant shares, and that all
other variables remain constant.

Fair values

Effective 1 April 2009, the Group adopted the
amendment to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments that
are measured in the statement of financial position
at fair value. This requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).
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32. B R ERE )
(d) REEERE

()

AREBRE S EATHHCHBEE
(RLHIEE16) 2 B2 BT A 2 R
HEBER -

AEEZ FHREREEHERHME
RARLE™ - AEEERKEHRAT
ZEBRER  WEBBRREZER
CERTHMEFIERBERE

MR SH B EEMRRES B LFH,
TEEA% - AT E b B R N
BB E—_T-—ZEFE=-A=+—HIFE
AEFBEEFERAFERES LF
T 4B HE237,00070( ZEENF ¢ B
#:334,0007T) °

BRENIEL - BREAEREZE
PERmEASEL  YORAREN
SAEAREMBE MBI  MaE
TASASERSRE AMAASEAEE
RER - WAREEZ A FEREERE
R & o o RRAEEREREZ
DNFE - BIREA EREERAEERE
mEd - AARKE A HHEEMBEERM
ERABR D ERESMRERRE
BEMBEMERERTE -

AT
B-BEAFMA-BE - AEEHH
BHRRPRATEH 22 SHTAR
BT BREEUETRZETA -
BT AR A T A T ER B
BEBBATEZHE

- MHREEXAEBEEARTSE IR
BORERHE)(F—) »
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e)

(f)

98

h = -
‘W ‘

2. IR REE )

Fair values (Continued) () ATFEE)

— Input other than quoted prices included within B —RMBIEZREI  AIEE
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, (BMZ B ) s (B R ERLT
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, VBRI EESBERAE
derived from prices) (level 2). (B=4) -

- Input for the asset or liability that are not based — WIHEKBEBEMEMSHEZE
on observable market data (that is, unobservable EsaEn AEBIEERmEH
input) (level 3). ANBE)(E=H) -

The following table presents the Group’s assets that TREINAEBR -_ZT—ZTF=H

are measured at fair value at 31 March 2010. =+—H *’“IFTEaJrEZé“F °

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
B ot E=H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT IT BETFIT JEEFIT

Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EM R EE 23,682 - -
Total assets BERE 23,682 - -
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active WERNSEE 2B TAZ AFETS
markets is based on quoted market prices at the AR R BRI A RS PR h (B R LA ©
end of the reporting period. A market is regarded M PR AR AT BN R HRAE R S P~ &2
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly S0 &40 0 TR BIBIREESK
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry EEREBES  MREEBRRREERT
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and R AP IRAETTHIMISR S - AlEZm
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring BERAERR - ZETEFAE A -
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These

instruments are included in level 1.

Estimation of fair values () 2FEMGEET

(i)  Available-for-sale financial assets
The fair value of the available-for-sale financial
assets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date without any deduction for
transaction costs. Fair value for the unquoted
equity instruments is estimated using the
discounted cashflow model.

(i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.

) FARHEUFEE
A HEP B EETI AR ®RE A
HAFT R B (L ENR TR HK
R)RBEE - BREBETAEZR
FETE AR IRAE A MAE o

(i) EEBEALER
RFEDRRRREREZRE
st - WIRBUE K T A Z BN
TG EAGIA
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33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 33. A\ GIMEB AT 23S

COMPANY
Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are as RZZ—ZF=A=+—0  WEBARFE
follows: O
Percenta_ge of equity
READL
Issued
Place of incorporation/ Group’s capital/
establishment and effective  Held by the Held by paid-in Registered
Name of company operation holding Company  subsidiary capital capital Principal activities
[R5y
Eﬂﬁﬁki/ﬁki *4@ ARH KEAR ﬁﬂ’izﬁ/ . R
ARER REEHhH BREE "B #E  BEERX HEMER  FREK
Capital Scope Limited British Virgin Island 100% 100% - US$1 US$1 Investment holding
EBRAES 1% =T REARK
Capital Up Holdings British Virgin Island 100% 100% - US$1 US$1 Investment holding
Limited EBETHS e T RARR
gassic Charter Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$50 HK$50 Loan financing
REARAT & 50T 50T BERmE
Goldson Holdings Limited British Virgin Island 100% 100% - USS$1 US§1 Investment holding
EREXES 1% 1ET REBR
Keen Capital Investments Limited Hong Kong 100% 100% - HK$1 HK$1 Carpark management
HEREBRAR 0 BEIT BT FEBER
Kingsman Development Limited British Virgin Island 100% - 100% US$1 US$1 Loan financing
EBRAES 1%L AE ¢
Million Good Group Limited British Virgin Island 100% - 100% US$100 US$100 Property investment
EREXES 100%7T 100%T  WERE
Prime Concept Development Limited Hong Kong 100% 100% - HKS$1 HK$1 Investment holding
BRERARAF BE BT BT RERK
Royal Asset Investments Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$1 HK$1 Property investment
ZEREBRAA Bk BEIT BT MERE
Wise Oasis Limited British Virgin Island 100% 100% - US$1 US$1 Investment holding
EBRAES 1%L 1%T REER
World Regal Limited British Virgin Island 100% 100% - US$1 US$1 Investment holding
EREXES 1% 1=T RERR
poagd A
34. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 34. ®EBRSIE

On 20 July 2010, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a non-legal binding letter of intent
with two vendors in relation to the proposed acquisition
of the interests in the coal mines and the coal washing
plants in Shanxi Province, the PRC. The consideration for
the proposed acquisition shall not be more than HK$10.5
billion and shall be satisfied by the issue(s) of convertible
bonds and/or new shares of the Company and/or cash (or
other means to be agreed). It is presently expected that
the proposed acquisition, when crystallised, may constitute
a very substantial acquisition for the Company under the
Listing Rules. Further detailed announcements will be made
by the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules as
and when appropriate. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 20 July 2010.

. COMPARATE FIGURES

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
Presentation of financial statements and HKFRS 8,
Operating segments, certain comparative figures have been
adjusted to conform to current year’s presentation and to
provide comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed
for the first time in 2009.
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Financial Summary

RESULTS E
2006 2007 2008 2009
—TTRE —TELF —TTN\F  —TTARF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B EEFr  EETT BB
Turnover e 12,673 13,206 11,062 19,079
Other operating income HABEBUA 2,282 439 3,994 4,377
Operating costs FE RN (21,089  (17,924)  (18,928)  (22,410)
Other operating income/(expenses) Efg& & U A~
(Fx) 45,200 18,464 (8,113) (25,721)
Impairment loss recognised I TIEB Z BEHR
in respect of: &S
~ interests in leasehold land — R THE N EE
held for own use under BRAHEE
operating leases W - (13,936) - -
— goodwil —ma (2,212) - - -
- other assets —HibhEE (505) (336) - -
Profit/(loss) from operating IR RS T (E1E)
activities 36,349 87) (11,985) (24,675)
Profit on disposals of rural land k== (g b Y
exploitation rights il - - 800 -
Profit on disposal of S AT S B S
available-for-sale financial assets & & i 7 - - 17,880 -
Impairment losses recognised in -~ B[S E RIS A E
respect of available-for-sale 2 BRI EEE
financial assets N - (27,431)  (40,750)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary ~ HE&E—RIME A FEIE - (480) (44) 9,522
Profit on disposals of investment &% & )5 % K|
properties 5,793 - - -
Profit on disposals of associates  H & Bk A &3 H) - - - 20
Finance costs BAREAR A (6,321) (6,815) (r,641)  (19,308)
Share of results of associates FEIGEEE A RIS (13) @) (15) 8
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATER, (E1E) 35,808 (7,384) (28,436) (75,199)
Taxation A 245 219 1562 88
Profit/(loss) for the year REZ RN,/ (EE) 36,053 (7,165 (28284)  (75,111)

100

(1,414)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2006
ZETTRE
HK$000
BT

2007

ZTTtF

HK$'000
BT T

BERE 244,778
afERE (132,998)

254,949
(139,447)

Shareholders’ funds

BRES 111,780

115,502
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Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March

FEBKRENER _ZT—TF=_A=1T—HZ#F

2010 are as follows: BT
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REW=
Gross Group’s
floor area Attributable
Location (sq. ft) Purpose Term of lease Interest
BHEE rEBEZ
NE (FFR) A HEFH iR
1. House No. 26 and the Garden 4,868  Residential Medium-term 100
on Ground Floor, and Car Parking Spaces x=E lease
Nos. 26A and 26B on Basement, FhERTRAY
Las Pinadas, No. 33 Shouson Hill Road,
Hong Kong
EE
=1L E335%
BAYAE 26 E N {EE
A B2 3 B 26A K2 26 BIZ E fiz
2. Flat E on 13th Floor, Hing On Mansion, 675  Residential Long-term 100
Hing On Terrace, No. 5 Tai Yue Avenue, F=E lease
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong REATEA
BAKEW
RIS B B
WL R13IEER
3. Flat G on 23rd Floor, Hing On Mansion, 600  Residential Long-term 100
Hing On Terrace, No. 5 Tai Yue Avenue, F= lease
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong REATEA

BEKEH
KIEEREZEE
BZ723IBGE

102
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